SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

Amendment No. 1 To

FORM S-4

REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

SIMON PROPERTY GROUP, INC.

(EXACT NAME OF REGISTRANT AS SPECIFIED IN ITS CHARTER)

DELAWARE

(STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF INCORPORATION OR ORGANIZATION)

5798

(PRIMARY STANDARD INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION CODE NUMBER)

04-6268599

(I.R.S. EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER)

NATIONAL CITY CENTER 115 WEST WASHINGTON STREET, SUITE 15 EAST INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46204 (317) 636-1600

(ADDRESS, INCLUDING ZIP CODE, AND TELEPHONE NUMBER, INCLUDING AREA CODE, OF THE REGISTRANT'S PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICES)

JAMES M. BARKLEY, ESQ.
GENERAL COUNSEL
NATIONAL CITY CENTER
115 WEST WASHINGTON STREET, SUITE 15 EAST
INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46204
(317) 636-1600

(NAME, ADDRESS, INCLUDING ZIP CODE, AND TELEPHONE NUMBER, INCLUDING AREA CODE, OF AGENT FOR SERVICE)

COPIES TO:

DAVID C. WORRELL, ESQ.
BAKER & DANIELS
300 NORTH MERIDIAN STREET, SUITE 2700
INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204
(317) 237-0300

APPROXIMATE DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF PROPOSED SALE OF THE SECURITIES TO THE PUBLIC:

As soon as practicable after the effective date of this Registration Statement and upon the effective time of the merger (the "Merger") of SPG Properties, Inc. with and into the Registrant.

If the securities being registered on this Form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box. //

THE REGISTRANT HEREBY AMENDS THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT ON SUCH DATE OR DATES AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO DELAY ITS EFFECTIVE DATE UNTIL THE REGISTRANT SHALL FILE A FURTHER AMENDMENT WHICH SPECIFICALLY STATES THAT THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT SHALL HEREAFTER BECOME EFFECTIVE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 8(a) OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR UNTIL THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON SUCH DATE AS THE COMMISSION, ACTING PURSUANT TO SAID SECTION 8(a), MAY DETERMINE.



May 24, 2001

Dear Stockholders of SPG Properties, Inc.

Attached is an information statement-prospectus relating to the proposed merger of SPG Properties, Inc. into Simon Property Group, Inc. The merger will simplify our organizational structure by eliminating Properties as a separate subsidiary of Simon. In the merger, each share of Properties' common stock which is not held by Simon (Simon owns 99.9% of the Properties' common stock) will be converted into the right to receive \$26.28 in cash and each share of the two outstanding series of Properties' preferred stock will be converted into shares of one of two newly established series of Simon preferred stock with identical powers, designations, preferences and rights.

Although there will be a special meeting of stockholders of Properties on June 28, 2001 to vote on the merger, you do not need to attend. Simon already owns a sufficient number of shares of Properties' common stock to approve the merger and no vote will be required by the holders of the Properties' preferred stock. As a result, we are not asking you for a proxy and you are requested not to send us a proxy.

The accompanying notice of meeting and information statement-prospectus explain the merger and provide specific information concerning the special meeting. Please read these materials carefully. You should carefully consider the risk factors relating to the merger beginning on page 10.

You will be notified when the merger has been completed and sent a letter of transmittal and instructions for the purpose of receiving the cash (for owners of Properties' common stock) or exchanging your certificates (for owners of Properties' preferred stock). Thank you for your support.



David Simon Chief Executive Officer

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the securities to be issued or determined if this information statement-prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense. This information statement-prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities in any jurisdiction where an offer or solicitation would be illegal.

This information statement-prospectus is dated May 24, 2001 and is first being mailed to stockholders on or about May 25, 2001.

SOURCES OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT-PROSPECTUS INCORPORATES IMPORTANT BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT SIMON OR PROPERTIES THAT IS NOT INCLUDED OR DELIVERED WITH THIS DOCUMENT. SUCH INFORMATION IS AVAILABLE WITHOUT CHARGE TO PROPERTIES STOCKHOLDERS UPON WRITTEN OR ORAL REQUEST. CONTACT SIMON PROPERTY GROUP, NATIONAL CITY CENTER, 115 WEST WASHINGTON STREET, SUITE 15 EAST, INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204, (317) 685-7330, ATTENTION: INVESTOR RELATIONS. TO OBTAIN TIMELY DELIVERY OF REQUESTED DOCUMENTS PRIOR TO THE TIME BY WHICH YOU MUST EXERCISE YOUR APPRAISAL RIGHTS TO AVOID WAIVING THEM, YOU MUST REQUEST THE INCORPORATED INFORMATION NO LATER THAN JUNE 21, 2001. ALSO SEE "WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION" IN THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT-PROSPECTUS.

SPG PROPERTIES, INC. 115 WEST WASHINGTON STREET INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To The Stockholders of SPG Properties, Inc.:

Please take notice that a special meeting of stockholders of SPG Properties, Inc. ("Properties") will be held at 115 West Washington Street, 15th Floor-East Tower, Indianapolis, Indiana on Thursday, June 28, 2001 at 9:00 a.m., Indianapolis time, to consider the following proposals:

- (1) to approve the Agreement of Merger dated May 9, 2001, that provides for the merger of Properties with and into Simon Property Group, Inc. ("Simon"). The merger agreement is attached as Appendix A to the accompanying information statement-prospectus. The information statement-prospectus describes the rights of holders of Properties common stock to dissent from the merger and the procedures you must follow to exercise those rights.
- (2) to transact such other business as may come before the meeting or any adjournment or postponement.

Only record holders of Properties common stock at the close of business on May 21, 2001 will be entitled to vote at the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

You may attend the special meeting and vote in person at the meeting; however, Simon owns sufficient shares of Properties common stock to approve the merger and we are not soliciting any proxies for the vote at the special meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors of SPG Properties, Inc.

James M. Barkley, Secretary

Dated: May 25, 2001

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER	1
SUMMARY	3
RISK FACTORS	10
PROPERTIES SPECIAL MEETING	14
THE MERGER	15
FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES	19
INFORMATION ABOUT PROPERTIES AND SIMON	20
POLICIES OF SIMON FOLLOWING THE MERGER	21
DESCRIPTION OF SIMON PREFERRED STOCK TO BE ISSUED IN THE MERGER	24
DIFFERENCES BETWEEN PROPERTIES AND SIMON ORGANIZATIONAL	
DOCUMENTS AND MARYLAND AND DELAWARE LAW	31
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	39

LEGAL MATTERS	44
EXPERTS	44
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS	44
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	44
INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	46
APPENDIX A—AGREEMENT OF MERGER DATED MAY 9, 2001, BETWEEN SIMON PROPERTY GROUP, INC. AND SPG PROPERTIES, INC.	A-1
APPENDIX B—SECTIONS 3-201 <i>ET SEQ.</i> OF THE MARYLAND GENERAL CORPORATION LAW	B-1

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER

WHAT IS THE PROPOSED TRANSACTION?

In order to simplify our organizational structure, we are planning to merge Properties, which is a substantially wholly-owned subsidiary of Simon, into Simon. The holders of Properties common stock, other than Simon and dissenting stockholders, will have their shares converted into the right to receive cash and the holders of Properties preferred stock will have their shares converted into an equal number of shares of an identical class of Simon preferred stock.

WHAT WILL I RECEIVE IN THE MERGER?

Each share and fractional interest of Properties common stock not held by Simon will be converted into the right to receive \$26.28 per share in cash. Each share of Properties 8³/4% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock will be converted into one share of Simon 8³/4% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. Each share of Properties 7.89% Series C Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock will be converted into one share of Simon 7.89% Series G Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock.

HOW WAS THE CASH MERGER CONSIDERATION DETERMINED?

The amount of cash is equal to the average of the closing prices per share for the Simon common stock as reported by the New York Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading days ended

WILL THE CASH AMOUNT OR EXCHANGE RATIO OF THE SHARES I WILL RECEIVE CHANGE BETWEEN NOW AND THE TIME THE MERGER IS COMPLETED?

Nο

WHY IS THERE NO SOLICITATION OF PROXIES?

Even though there will be a special meeting of stockholders of Properties to vote on the merger, only the holders of Properties common stock are entitled to vote at the meeting. Simon owns approximately 99.9% of the outstanding Properties common stock and, accordingly, has sufficient votes to approve the merger.

WHY IS THERE NO VOTE BY THE HOLDERS OF PREFERRED STOCK?

There is no vote required by the Properties preferred stock under Maryland law or Properties' organizational documents including the articles supplementary establishing the terms of the preferred stock because the merger will not materially and adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Properties preferred stock.

AM I ENTITLED TO APPRAISAL RIGHTS?

Holders of Properties common stock have the appraisal rights provided under Maryland law. Holders of Properties preferred stock do not have any appraisal rights. To perfect their appraisal rights, holders of Properties common stock must strictly comply with the procedures in Sections 3-201 *et seq.* of the Maryland General Corporation Law (the "MGCL"). Failure to comply strictly with these procedures will result in the loss of appraisal rights. A copy of Sections 3-201 *et seq.* of the MGCL appears as Appendix B to this information statement-prospectus.

WHAT DO I NEED TO DO NOW?

Nothing. After the merger is completed you will receive written instructions and a letter of transmittal. Please do not send your share certificates until you receive the instructions and the letter of transmittal.

WHEN DO YOU EXPECT TO COMPLETE THE MERGER?

We expect to complete the merger shortly after the special meeting of Properties stockholders on or about June 30, 2001.

ARE THERE ANY TAX CONSEQUENCES TO THE MERGER?

The exchange of Simon preferred stock for Properties preferred stock is expected to be tax-free for federal income tax purposes. However, holders of Properties common stock will recognize taxable gain or loss based on the difference between the cash paid in the merger and the tax basis of their Properties common stock. See "FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES" for a fuller discussion of the tax consequences of the merger.

ARE THERE ANY MATERIAL DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE PROPERTIES PREFERRED STOCK AND THE SIMON PREFERRED STOCK THAT WILL BE ISSUED IN THE MERGER?

The classes of Simon preferred stock that will be issued in the merger are intended to have identical powers, designations, preferences and rights as the corresponding classes of Properties preferred stock. However, there are differences between the organizational documents of Simon and Properties and Simon is a Delaware corporation and Properties is a Maryland corporation. See "DESCRIPTION OF SIMON PREFERRED STOCK TO BE ISSUED IN THE MERGER" and "DIFFERENCES BETWEEN PROPERTIES AND SIMON ORGANIZATIONAL DOCUMENTS AND MARYLAND AND DELAWARE LAW" for a fuller discussion of these issues.

WHERE CAN I FIND MORE INFORMATION?

More information about Simon and Properties is available from various sources described under "WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION."

As used in this information statement-prospectus, "Simon" refers to Simon Property Group, Inc. and "Properties" refers to SPG Properties, Inc.

This summary highlights selected information from this information statement-prospectus and may not contain all of the information that is important to you. You should carefully read this entire document and the other documents we refer to for a more complete understanding of the merger. In addition, we incorporate by reference important business and financial information about Simon and Properties into this information statement-prospectus. You can obtain that information without charge by following the instructions in the section entitled "WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION" of this information statement-prospectus. We have included page references in parentheses to direct you to a more complete description of the topics presented in this summary.

Properties Special Meeting (See Page 14)

Properties will hold a special meeting of stockholders on Thursday, June 28, 2001 at 115 West Washington Street, 15th Floor-East Tower, Indianapolis, Indiana, 9:00 a.m., Indianapolis time. The purposes of the meeting are to:

vote on the merger agreement; and

act on any other matters that properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or postponement.

Record Date; Vote Required To Approve The Merger; No Solicitation Of Proxies (See Page 14)

The record date for the special meeting is May 21, 2001. Only holders of Properties common stock are eligible to vote at the special meeting. On the record date, there were 113,668,027.32 shares of Properties common stock outstanding and entitled to vote. The affirmative vote of at least a majority of the shares of Properties common stock outstanding on the record date or 56,834,014 shares is required to approve the merger. Simon owns 113,664,297 shares of Properties common stock, or approximately 99.9% of the shares entitled to vote, and will vote all of its shares in favor of the merger. Accordingly, approval of the merger is assured.

No proxies are being solicited for the special meeting.

Parties To The Merger (See Pages 20-21)

Simon. Simon owns, operates, manages, leases, acquires, expands and develops real estate properties, primarily regional malls and community shopping centers. Simon has elected to be taxed as a "real estate investment trust" or REIT for federal income tax purposes. SPG Realty Consultants, Inc. ("SRC") is Simon's "paired share" affiliate which means that fractional interests of SRC's common stock are paired with shares of Simon's common stock and preferred stock which is convertible into Simon common stock. The shares of Simon preferred stock to be issued in the merger will not be paired with SRC common stock.

As of March 31, 2001, Simon with its majority-owned subsidiary, Simon Property Group, L.P. (the "Operating Partnership"), owned or held interests in 250 income-producing properties, consisting of 164 regional malls, 72 community shopping centers, five specialty retail centers, four office and mixed-use properties, and five value-oriented super regional malls located in a total of 36 states. The Operating Partnership also has interests in five additional properties in Europe. The U.S. properties have over 183.6 million square feet of gross leaseable area of which Simon owns approximately 110.4 million square feet.

3

Properties. Properties is a substantially wholly-owned subsidiary of Simon. Properties is a non-managing general partner and owns a 48.2% interest in the Operating Partnership. Properties has no other accepts on business activities.

Executive Offices. The principal executive offices of both Simon and Properties are located at National City Center, 115 West Washington Street, Suite 15 East, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204. The telephone number for Simon and Properties is (317) 636-1600. Simon's world wide web site address is www.simon.com. The information in our web site is not incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus.

The Merger (See Pages 15-19)

In order to simplify Simon's organizational structure, Simon has determined to merge Properties into Simon. In the merger, each share of Properties common stock not owned by Simon will be converted into the right to receive \$26.28 in cash unless the holder exercises appraisal rights; each share of Properties 8³/4% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock will be converted into one share of Simon 8³/4% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock; and each share of Properties 7.89% Series C Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock will be converted into one share of Simon 7.89% Series G Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock.

Federal Income Tax Consequences (See Pages 19-20)

The merger is intended to qualify as a reorganization under the Internal Revenue Code with the result that no gain or loss will be recognized by holders of Properties preferred stock from the receipt of Simon preferred stock in the merger. However, holders of Properties common stock will generally recognize capital gain or loss measured by the difference between the cash received in the merger and the tax basis of the holder's shares. Please read the section called "FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES" for a fuller discussion of the tax consequences of the merger.

Exchange Of Shares (See Pages 16-17)

You will receive detailed instructions regarding the surrender of your stock certificates from Mellon Investor Services LLC promptly following the effective time of the merger. Please do not send any stock certificates to Simon. Properties or the exchange agent until you receive these instructions.

Purpose And Reasons For The Merger (See Page 15)

The purpose of the merger is to simplify the organizational structure by merging Properties into Simon. The current structure is a consequence of the 1998 combination between Simon DeBartolo Group, Inc. (Properties' predecessor) and Corporate Property Investors, Inc. (Simon's predecessor). Simon believes it is no longer necessary or desirable to maintain Properties as a separate, but substantially wholly-owned, subsidiary of Simon. In deciding to undertake the merger, Simon considered the following factors, among others:

Properties has no business activities other than as serving as a non-managing general partner of the Operating Partnership and no assets other than its 48.2% interest in the Operating Partnership;

the need for Properties to meet the requirements for qualifying as a REIT for federal income tax purposes and the costs of maintaining Properties as a separate public company, including eliminating fees associated with SEC reporting and related legal and accounting fees, which Simon anticipates costs approximately \$25,000 per year;

there are no material adverse tax consequences that will result from merging Properties into Simon at present;

4

the amount of cash to be paid to holders of common stock reflects the current value of Properties' percentage interest in the Operating Partnership; and

the terms of the classes of Simon preferred stock to be issued in the merger are identical to the corresponding classes of outstanding Properties preferred stock.

A limited number of conditions must be satisfied before the merger will be completed. These include: the absence of any legal development that would make the merger illegal; the effectiveness of the registration statement of which this information statement-prospectus forms a part;

listing the Simon 83/4% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock to be issued in the merger on the New York Stock Exchange; and

the receipt by Simon of a tax opinion regarding certain tax matters relating to the merger.

Accounting Treatment (See Page 17)

The merger, if completed, will be accounted for as the acquisition of a minority interest by Simon using the purchase method of accounting.

Federal And State Regulatory Requirements (See Page 17)

Except for filing the merger agreement in Delaware and articles of merger in Maryland and compliance with federal and state securities laws, Simon is not aware of any material United States federal or state or foreign governmental regulatory requirement necessary to be complied with, or approval that must be obtained, in connection with the merger.

Restrictions On The Ability To Sell Simon Stock (See Pages 17-18)

All shares of Simon preferred stock you receive in the merger will be freely transferrable unless you are considered an "affiliate" of Simon under the Securities Act of 1933. Shares of Simon preferred stock held by its affiliates may only be sold under a registration statement or an exemption under the Securities Act.

Appraisal Rights Of Dissenting Holders Of Common Stock (See Pages 18-19 And Appendix B)

If you are a holder of Properties common stock and you object to the merger, Maryland law permits you to dissent from the merger and have the "fair value" of your shares of Properties common stock determined by a court and paid to you in cash. This value may be more or less than the amount that will be paid in the merger. Holders of Properties preferred stock do not have the right to dissent from the merger. The appraisal rights provisions of the MGCL are technical in nature and complex and are attached as Appendix B to this information statement-prospectus. If you wish to exercise your appraisal rights, you may wish to consult with legal counsel because the failure to comply strictly with these provisions may result in waiver or forfeiture of your appraisal

Differences Between Properties Preferred Stock And Simon Preferred Stock (See Pages 24-31 and 31-38)

Although the classes of Simon preferred stock to be issued in the merger are intended to have identical powers, designations, preferences and rights as the corresponding classes of Properties preferred stock that are currently outstanding, there will be some differences in the rights of the holders of those securities because of differences in the companies' organizational documents and because Simon is a Delaware corporation and Properties is a Maryland corporation.

5

Ratio Of Earnings To Fixed Charges And Preferred Stock Dividends

The following table sets forth Simon's historical ratios of earnings to fixed charges and preferred stock dividends for the periods indicated:

	intee Months Ended March 31		real Educat Determines 31,										
2001 pro forma	2001	2000	2000 pro forma	2000	1999	1998	1997	1996					
1.24x	1.24x	1.32x	1.38x	1.38x	1.36x	1.43x	1.54x	1.55x					

Selected Financial Information—Properties

The selected financial information presented below as of March 31, 2001 and 2000 and for the three months then ended, has been derived from Properties' unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus. The selected financial information presented below as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, has been derived from Properties' consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, independent public accountants, as indicated in their report incorporated by reference into this information statement- prospectus. The selected financial information presented below as of December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 1997, has been derived from Properties' (formerly known as Simon DeBartolo Group, Inc.) consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, but have not been included or incorporated by reference herein. This information should be read in conjunction with Properties' consolidated financial statements and related notes incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus.

	As o	of or for the Three M	Months 1	Ended March 31,		As of or for the Year Ended December 31,										
	2001			2001 2000		2000(1)	2000(1) 1999(1)		1998(1)	1997			1996			
						(in tho	usano	ds, except per share data)								
Operating Data(2):																
Total revenue	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	932,619	\$	1,054,167	\$	747,704		
Equity in income of the SPG Operating Partnership(3)		27,447		26,418		155,721		137,764		44,313		_		_		
Income before extraordinary items		27,447		26,418		155,721		137,764		185,586		203,133		134,663		
Net income available to common shareholders		20,113		19,084	\$	126,385	\$	108,428	\$	116,509	\$	107,989	\$	72,561		
Distributions per common share(4)	\$	0.505	\$	0.505	\$	2.02	\$	2.02	\$	2.02	\$	2.01	\$	1.63		
Balance Sheet Data:																
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	_	\$	109,699	\$	64,309		
Total assets		1,933,873		2,036,927		1,971,122		2,072,186		2,108,291		7,662,667		5,895,910		
Mortgages and other indebtedness		_		_		_		_		_		5,077,990		3,681,984		
Shareholders' equity	\$	1,933,873	\$	2,036,927	\$	1,971,122	\$	2,072,186	\$	2,108,291	\$	1,556,862	\$	1,304,891		

(1) Notes 3, 4 and 5 to the financial statements of Simon Property Group, L.P. describe the CPI Merger, which occurred on September 24, 1998, and other 2000, 1999 and 1998 real estate acquisitions and development.

Properties does not report earnings per share, because substantially all of the common stock of Properties is owned by Simon.

(3)

See Note 2 to the financial statements of Properties.

Represents distributions declared per period, which, in 1996, includes a distribution of \$0.1515 per share declared on August 9, 1996, in connection with the DRC Merger, designated to align the time periods of distributions of the merged companies. The current annual distribution rate is \$2.10 per share.

The Notes to the financial statements referred to in these notes are included in Properties' Annual Report on Form 10-K incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus.

Selected Financial Information—Simon

(4)

The selected financial information presented below as of March 31, 2001 and 2000 and for the three months then ended, has been derived from Simon's unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus. The selected financial information presented below as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 and for

6

each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, has been derived from Simon's consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, independent public accountants, as indicated in their report incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus. The selected financial information presented below as of December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 1997, has been derived from Simon's consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, but have not been included or incorporated by reference herein. This information should be read in conjunction with Simon's consolidated financial statements and related notes included in this information statement-prospectus.

	As of or for the Three Months Ended March 31,					As of or for the Year Ended December 31,									
		2001 2000			2000		1999(1)		1998(1)		1997		1996(2)		
						(in thousa	nds,	except per share data)							
Operating Data:															
Total revenue	\$	489,815	\$	476,192	\$	2,012,737	\$	1,894,971	\$	1,405,072	\$	1,054,167	\$	747,704	
Income before unusual item,															
extraordinary items, and cumulative															
effect of accounting change		62,867		72,033		355,120		315,499		235,790		203,133		134,663	
Net income available to common	_		_		_		_		_		_		_		
shareholders	\$	30,282	\$	28,892	\$	192,103	\$	165,944	\$	133,286	\$	107,989	\$	72,561	
Basic Earnings Per Common Share:															
Income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting															
change	\$	0.19	¢	0.22	¢	1.16	¢	0.99	¢	1.01	¢	1.08	¢	1.02	
Extraordinary items	Ф	0.15	Ф	0.22	Ф	1.10	Ф	(0.03)		0.04	Ф	1.00	Φ	(0.03)	
Cumulative effect of accounting		_		_		_		(0.03)	1	0.04		-		(0.03)	
change		(0.01)	,	(0.05)		(0.05)		_		_		_		_	
Change		(0.01)	_	(0.05)	_	(0.05)	_		_		_				
Net income	\$	0.18	\$	0.17	\$	1.11	\$	0.96	\$	1.05	\$	1.08	\$	0.99	
ret meome	Ψ	0.10	Ψ	0.17	Ψ	1.11	Ψ	0.50	Ψ	1.05	Ψ	1.00	Ψ	0.55	
Weighted average shares outstanding		172,001		173,223		172,895		172,089		126,522		99,920		73,586	
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share:		1/2,001		1/3,223		1/2,895		1/2,089		120,522		99,920		/3,580	
Income before extraordinary items															
and cumulative effect of accounting															
change	\$	0.19	\$	0.22	\$	1.16	\$	0.99	\$	1.01	\$	1.08	\$	1.01	
Extraordinary items	_	_	_		_		_	(0.03)		0.04	_		•	(0.03)	
Cumulative effect of accounting								(0.05)		0.04				(0.05)	
change		(0.01))	(0.05)		(0.05)	1	_		_		_		_	
- · · · · ·			_		_		_		_		_		_		
Net income	\$	0.18	\$	0.17	\$	1.11	\$	0.96	\$	1.05	\$	1.08	\$	0.98	
Diluted weighted average shares															
outstanding		172,178		173,268		172,994		172,226		126,879		100,304		73,721	
Distributions per common share(3)	\$	0.505	\$	0.505	\$	2.02	\$	2.02	\$	2.02	\$	2.01	\$	1.63	
Balance Sheet Data:															
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	128,312	\$	117,921	\$	214,404	\$	154,924	\$	127,626	\$	109,699	\$	64,309	
Total assets		13,742,816		14,076,463		13,911,407		14,199,318		13,269,129		7,662,667		5,895,910	
Mortgages and other notes payable		8,747,218		8,845,110		8,728,582		8,768,841		7,990,288		5,077,990		3,681,984	
Shareholders' equity	\$	2,993,770	\$	3,179,809	\$	3,054,012	\$	3,237,545	\$	3,394,142	\$	1,556,862	\$	1,304,891	

- (1)
 Notes 3, 4 and 5 to the financial statements describe the NED Acquisition and the CPI Merger, which occurred August 27, 1999 and September 24, 1998, respectively, and other 1999 and 1998 real estate acquisitions and development.
- (2) Beginning August 9, 1996, results include the DRC Merger.
- (3)

 Represents distributions declared per period, which, in 1996, includes a distribution of \$0.1515 per share declared on August 9, 1996, in connection with the DRC Merger, designated to align the time periods of distributions of the merged companies.

The Notes to the financial statements referred to in these notes are included in the Simon Annual Report on Form 10-K incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus.

7

Unaudited Pro Forma Selected Financial Information

The pro forma information presented below is derived from the pro forma condensed financial information and related assumptions and adjustments included elsewhere in this information statement-prospectus. The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed statements of operations data set forth the results of continuing operations for the three months ended March 31, 2001 and

the year ended December 31, 2000, as if the merger had become effective at the beginning of calendar 2001 and 2000, respectively. The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed balance sheet data sets forth the financial position as of March 31, 2001, as if the merger had become effective on March 31, 2001.

Pro Forma (In thousands, except per share data)

		e Three Months Ended rch 31, 2001	As of or for the Year Ended December 31, 2000			
Operating Data:						
Total revenue	\$	489,815	s	2,012,737		
Income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting change	3					
Net income available to common shareholders before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting change		62,867		355,120		
	\$	31,945	\$	201,507		
D. A. IDILLIE, A. D. G Cl.						
Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Common Share: Net Income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting change						
	\$	0.19	\$	1.16		
Basic weighted average shares outstanding		172,001		172,895		
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding		172,178		172,994		
	¢	0.505		2.02		
Distributions per common share	\$	0.505	\$	2.02		
Balance Sheet Data:						
Cash and cash equivalents	S	128,312		N/A		
Total assets	\$	•				
Mortgages and other notes payable		13,742,816		N/A		
Shareholders' equity		8,747,218		N/A		
Shareholders equity	\$	2,993,770		N/A		
Per Share Data: Book Value per Share(1):						
Simon common stock (historical)	\$	14.09		N/A		
Simon common stock (pro forma)	\$	14.05		N/A		
	\$					
Properties common stock (historical)	\$	13.93		N/A		
Cash Dividends Declared per Share(1):						
Simon common stock (historical)	\$	0.505	\$	2.02		
Simon common stock (pro forma)	·					
	\$	0.505	\$	2.02		
Properties common stock (historical)	\$	0.505	\$	2.02		
Properties Series B Preferred Shares (historical)	\$	0.55	\$	2.19		
Properties Series B Preferred Shares (equivalent pro forma)	\$	0.55	\$	2.19		
	•					
Properties Series C Preferred Shares (historical)	\$	0.99	\$	3.95		
Properties Series C Preferred Shares (equivalent pro forma)	\$	0.99	\$	3.95		
Basic and Diluted Income per Share:						
Simon common stock (historical) Net income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting change	\$	0.19	\$	1.16		
Simon common stock (pro forma)			_			
Net income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting change	\$	0.19	\$	1.16		

No equivalent pro forma per share data is shown for Properties common stock because each share of Properties common stock not held by Simon will be converted into the right to receive cash. No Simon common stock will be issued in the merger.

8

Comparative Market Prices

There has been no established trading market for the Properties common stock since 1998. The most recent transaction known to Properties was the issuance by Properties of approximately 3,700 shares in September 1998 at a price of \$28.95 per share.

The Properties 8³/₄% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock ("Properties Series B Preferred Shares") is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "SGVPrB." The Properties 7.89% Series C Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock ("Properties Series C Preferred Shares") is not listed or traded on any established market; trades occur on an isolated or infrequent basis and Properties may not have knowledge of the terms involved.

The Simon common stock is paired with a fractional interest in SRC's common stock and is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "SPG." No Simon common stock will be issued in the merger.

The following table sets forth: (1) the per share equivalent price of the Properties common stock; (2) the closing sales price per share of the Properties Series B Preferred Shares as reported on the New York Stock Exchange on May 8, 2001 (the day preceding the date on which the merger agreement was entered into) and May 23, 2001 (the last trading day prior to the effective date of this information statement-prospectus); (3) the average of the high and low trading prices per share of the Properties Series C Preferred Shares as reported by Bloomberg for the day on which the last trade preceding May 8, 2001 occurred and May 23, 2001; and (4) the closing sale price per share of the Simon common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange on May 8, 2001 and May 23, 2001.

	-	May 8, 2001	 May 23, 2001	_	Per Share Equivalent*
Properties common stock		N/A	N/A	\$	26.28
Properties Series B Preferred Shares	\$	25.42	\$ 25.40		N/A
Properties Series C Preferred Shares	\$	39.50	\$ 38.00		N/A
Simon common stock	\$	25.90	\$ 27.09		N/A

The per share equivalent for the Properties common stock is the cash amount to be paid to holders of Properties common stock in the merger. No per share equivalent is shown for the Properties Series B Preferred Shares and the Properties Series C Preferred Shares because the Simon preferred stock to be issued in the merger represents newly established securities.

You should obtain current stock price quotations for Properties Series B Preferred Shares and, if available, the Properties Series C Preferred Shares.

RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the following risks, along with the other information contained or incorporated by reference in this information statement-prospectus before you take any action on the merger, including, if you hold Properties common stock, whether to exercise appraisal rights. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones affecting us. Additional risks and uncertainties may also adversely affect our business and operations. If any of the following events actually occurs, our business, financial condition and results of operations would likely suffer. possibly materially.

The Cash Merger Consideration Is Fixed And Will Not Be Adjusted.

The Board of Directors of Simon (who also serve as directors of Properties) determined the amount of cash to be paid to holders of Properties common stock in the merger on the basis of the factors described in this information statement-prospectus and Simon does not intend to adjust it to reflect any changes in the financial condition or results of operations of Properties.

There Are Differences Between The Preferred Stock Of Properties And Simon.

Although the classes of Simon preferred stock to be issued in the merger are intended to have substantially identical powers, designations, preferences and rights as the corresponding classes of Properties preferred stock that are currently outstanding, Properties is incorporated under the laws of the State of Maryland and Simon is incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. Holders of Properties preferred stock will, upon consummation of the merger, become stockholders of Simon and their rights as such will be governed by Delaware law, the Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the "Simon Charter") of Simon and the Restated By-laws (the "Simon By-laws") of Simon. Important differences exist between the laws of Maryland and the rights of stockholders of Properties and the laws of Delaware and the rights of stockholders of Simon. For example, the Restated Charter of Properties (the "Properties Charter") provides that directors only may be removed for cause by the stockholders while the Simon Charter provides that directors may be removed with or without cause by the stockholders. The MGCL provides that stockholders may take action by unanimous written consent while the Simon Charter requires that all actions by Simon common stockholders be taken at an annual or special meeting of the stockholders. The Properties By-laws provide that written notice of every meeting of the stockholders be given not less than 10 nor more than 90 calendar days before the date of the meeting to each stockholder of record entitled to vote the such meeting, while the Simon By-laws limit the notice period to not less than 10 nor more than 60 calendar days before the date of the meeting. See "DESCRIPTION OF SIMON PREFERRED STOCK TO BE ISSUED IN THE MERGER" and "DIFFERENCES BETWEEN PROPERTIES AND SIMON ORGANIZATIONAL DOCUMENTS AND MARYLAND AND DELAWARE LAW."

Risks Relating To Simon's Business

The following risks relate to Simon's real estate business and treatment as a REIT for federal tax purposes. These same risks currently apply to Properties because Properties' only business activities relate to its ownership of a 48.2% interest in the Operating Partnership which Simon controls.

Simon Has A Substantial Debt Burden That Could Affect Its Future Operations.

Simon is subject to the risks normally associated with debt financing, including the risk that our cash flow from operations will be insufficient to meet required payments of principal and interest, the risk that existing indebtedness will not be able to be refinanced or that the terms of such refinancing will not be as favorable as the terms of such indebtedness and the risk that necessary capital expenditures for such purposes as renovations and other improvements will not be able to be financed on favorable terms or at all. Certain significant expenditures associated with a property (such as

10

mortgage payments) generally will not be reduced when circumstances cause a reduction in income from such property. Should such events occur, Simon's operations and ability to make expected distributions to stockholders may be adversely affected. If a property is mortgaged to secure payment of indebtedness and we are unable to make payments on such indebtedness, the property could be transferred to the mortgagee with a possible consequent loss of income and asset value.

Certain of Simon's loans have floating interest rates. In certain cases, Simon will continue to be a party to existing interest rate protection agreements with financial institutions whereby these institutions agree to indemnify us against the risk of increases in interest rates above certain levels.

Rising Interest Rates And Other Factors Could Adversely Affect Simon's Stock Price And Borrowing Costs.

Any significant increase in market interest rates from their current levels could lead holders of Simon's securities to seek higher yields through other investments, which could adversely affect the market price of those securities. One of the factors that may influence the price of Simon's securities in public markets is the annual distribution rate Simon pays as compared with the yields on alternative investments. Numerous other factors, such as governmental regulatory action and tax laws, could have a significant impact on the future market price of Simon's securities. In addition, increases in market interest rates could result in increased borrowing costs, which may adversely affect cash flow and the amounts available for distributions to Simon's stockholders.

Simon employs standard risk management strategies to hedge exposures, primarily related to interest rate volatility. Interest rate cap agreements are used as a protection against interest rate increases on variable rate debt. Simon also enters into hedging transactions based upon U.S. Treasury Bill rates to manage exposure of rising interest rates before anticipated bond offerings. Simon intends to continue to enter into such arrangements if management determines they are in the best interest of the stockholders.

Interest rate hedging arrangements may expose Simon to certain risks. Although Simon tries to minimize these risks, interest rate movements during the terms of interest rate hedging agreements may result in a gain or loss on Simon's investment in the hedging arrangement. Developing an effective strategy is complex and no strategy can completely insulate Simon from risks associated with interest rate fluctuations. There can be no assurance that our hedging activities will have the desired beneficial impact on Simon's results of operations or financial condition. Such hedging agreements may involve certain costs, such as transaction fees or non-material breakage costs if they are terminated by Simon. In order to minimize counterparty credit risk, Simon's policy is to enter into hedging arrangements only with large creditworthy financial institutions.

There Are Factors Outside Simon's Control That Affect The Revenues And Economic Value Of Shopping Centers.

The revenues and value of shopping centers may be adversely affected by a number of factors, including: the national, regional and local economic climate; local real estate conditions; perceptions by retailers or shoppers of the safety, convenience and attractiveness of the shopping center; the proximity and quality of competing centers; trends in the retail industry, including contraction in the number of retailers and the number of locations operated; the quality and philosophy of management; changes in market rental rates; the inability to collect rent due to bankruptcy or insolvency of tenants or otherwise; the need periodically to renovate, repair and relet space and the costs thereof; the ability of an owner to provide adequate maintenance and insurance and increased operating costs. In addition, shopping center values are affected by such factors as changes in interest rates, the availability of financing, changes in governmental regulations, changes in tax laws or rates and potential environmental or other legal liabilities.

11

Simon's concentration in the retail shopping center real estate market subjects our portfolio of properties to certain risks, including, among others, the following risks: demand for shopping center space in Simon's markets may decrease; Simon may be unable to relet space upon lease expirations or to pay related renovation and reletting costs; economic and other conditions may affect shopping center property cash flows and values; tenants may be unable to make lease payments or may become bankrupt; and a property may not generate revenue sufficient to meet operating expenses, including future debt service. Simon's portfolio also has substantial concentration of properties in certain geographic markets, increasing its susceptibility to economic downturn in these regions.

Simon Has Limited Control With Respect To Certain Properties Partially Owned Or Managed By Third Parties.

On March 31, 2001, Simon owned interests in 250 properties including 80 income-producing properties which were not, directly or indirectly, wholly owned by the Operating Partnership ("Joint Venture Properties"). Simon does not have sole control of certain major decisions relating to many of the Joint Venture Properties, although we generally have a right of approval with respect to such matters. Simon does not have day-to-day operational control of certain of the Joint Venture Properties. These limitations may result in decisions by third parties with respect to such properties that do not fully reflect Simon's interests at such time, including decisions relating to the requirements with which we must comply in order to maintain Simon's status as a REIT. In addition, the sale or transfer of interests in certain of the partnerships is subject to rights of first refusal and buy-sell or similar arrangements. These rights may be triggered at a time when Simon

will not desire to sell but may be forced to do so because it does not have the cash to purchase the other party's interest. Simon is contractually restricted from selling certain of these properties without the consent of certain unrelated parties. These limitations on sale may adversely affect Simon's ability to sell these properties at the most advantageous time for Simon.

Simon's Properties Face A Wide Range Of Competition.

Shopping malls compete with other retail properties for tenants on the basis of the rent charged and location. However, the principal competition for the shopping malls may come from future shopping malls that will be located in the same market areas and from mail order and electronic commerce. There is also considerable competition to acquire equity interests in desirable real estate. The competition is provided by other real estate investment trusts, insurance companies, private pension plans and private developers. Additionally, Simon's credit rating and leverage will affect our competitive position in the public debt and equity markets.

Simon faces competition from other shopping mall developers for the acquisition of prime development sites and for tenants and is subject to the risks of real estate development, including the lack of financing, construction delays, environmental requirements, budget overruns and lease-up. Numerous other developers, managers and owners of real estate compete with us in seeking management and leasing revenues, land for development and properties for acquisition. In addition, retailers at Simon's properties face increasing competition from discount shopping centers, outlet malls, catalogues, discount shopping clubs and electronic commerce. With respect to many Simon properties, there are similar properties within the same market area. The existence of competitive properties could affect Simon's ability to lease space and the level of rents Simon can obtain. Renovations and expansions at competing malls could negatively affect a competing property. Increased competition could adversely affect Simon's revenues.

Real Estate Investments Are Illiquid.

Real property investments are relatively illiquid. Simon's ability to vary its portfolio of properties in response to changes in economic and other conditions is limited. If Simon wants to sell a property,

12

there is no assurance that we will be able to dispose of it in the desired time period or that the sales price of a property will exceed Simon's investment.

Simon Depends On Our Anchors And Tenants.

Simon's cash available for distribution would be adversely affected if the space in Simon's properties could not be leased, if tenants or anchors failed to meet their contractual obligations or seek concessions in order to continue operations. If the sales of stores operating in Simon's properties were to decline significantly due to economic conditions, closing of anchors or for other reasons, tenants may be unable to pay their minimum rents or expense recovery charges. In the event of default by a tenant or anchor, Simon may experience delays and costs in enforcing its rights as landlord.

Simon May Not Be Able To Renew Leases And Relet Space.

Simon is subject to the risks that, upon expiration of leases for space in its properties, the premises may not be relet or the terms of reletting (including the cost of concessions to tenants) may be less favorable than current lease terms. If Simon was unable promptly to relet all or a substantial portion of this space or if the rental rates upon such reletting were significantly lower than expected rates, Simon's cash generated before debt repayments and capital expenditures and ability to make expected distributions to stockholders may be adversely affected.

Simon's Charter And Bylaws Could Prevent A Change Of Control.

Simon's Charter places restrictions on the accumulation of shares in excess of 8% of the capital stock (18% in the case of Melvin Simon, Herbert Simon, David Simon and related persons and 11% in the case of one institutional stockholder) (calculated based on the lower of outstanding shares, voting power or value), subject to certain exceptions permitted with the approval of the Simon Board of Directors to allow (1) underwritten offerings or (2) the sale of equity securities in circumstances where the Board of Directors determines Simon's ability to qualify as a REIT will not be jeopardized. These restrictions on ownership and transferability may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a transaction or change in control of Simon that might involve a premium price for Simon securities or that otherwise might be in the best interest of Simon's stockholders. Certain other provisions of Simon's Charter and By-laws could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control even if some of Simon's stockholders deem such a change to be in Simon's and their best interest.

Simon's Failure To Qualify As A Reit Would Have Serious Adverse Consequences On Stockholders.

Simon and certain of its subsidiaries (including Properties) have elected to be taxed as REITs (the "REIT Members"). Simon believes that the REIT Members are organized and operated so as to qualify as REITs under the Internal Revenue Code. Simon intends to continue to operate them in a manner to maintain their status as REITs, but Simon cannot assure you that it will succeed in this. Qualification as a REIT requires the REIT Members to satisfy numerous requirements (some on an annual and quarterly basis) established under highly technical and complex Internal Revenue Code provisions for which there are only limited judicial and administrative interpretations, and involves the determination of various factual matters and circumstances that are not entirely within our control. For example, at least 90% of gross income in any year must be derived from qualifying sources, and the REIT Members must pay dividends to stockholders aggregating annually at least 90% of REIT taxable income (determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and by excluding capital gains). These provisions and the applicable treasury regulations are more complicated in Simon's case because it holds its assets in partnership form. Legislation, new regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions could significantly change the tax laws with respect to qualification as a REIT or the federal income tax consequences of such qualification. However, Simon is not aware of any pending tax legislation that would adversely affect the ability of any of the REIT Members to qualify as a REIT.

13

The failure of any one of the REIT Members to qualify as a REIT would cause Simon to lose its status as a REIT. If any of the REIT Members fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, the nonqualifying entity will be subject to federal income tax (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) on its taxable income at regular corporate rates. Unless the nonqualifying entity is entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions, it would be disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which it lost qualification. If Simon loses its REIT status, its net earnings available for investment or distribution to stockholders would be significantly reduced for each of the years involved. In addition, Simon would no longer be required to make distributions to stockholders.

PROPERTIES SPECIAL MEETING

Date, Time, Place and Purpose

This information statement-prospectus is being furnished to holders of Properties stock in connection with the special meeting to be held at 115 West Washington Street, 15th Floor-East Tower, Indianapolis, Indiana, on Thursday, June 28, 2001, at 9:00 a.m. Indianapolis time, and at any adjournment or postponement thereof. At the special meeting, the holders of Properties common stock will be asked to consider and vote upon the proposal to approve the Agreement of Merger dated May 9, 2001, which provides for the merger of Properties with and into Simon.

Record Date

The Board of Directors of Properties has fixed May 21, 2001, as the record date for determining the stockholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the special meeting. As of the close of business on the record date, there were 113,668,027.32 shares of common stock issued and outstanding; 8,000,000 shares of 8³/4% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock issued and outstanding and 3,000,000 shares of 7.89% Series C Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock issued and outstanding. Only holders of common stock at the close of business on the record date are entitled to vote at the special meeting. No shares can be voted at the special meeting, unless the record holder is present in person or represented by proxy at the special meeting.

Vote Required

The presence, in person or by proxy, of holders of a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Properties common stock entitled to vote on the record date, or 56,834,014 shares, is necessary to constitute a quorum at the special meeting. The affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Properties common stock, or 56,834,014 shares, is also required to approve the merger agreement. Each holder of Properties common stock is entitled to one vote per share.

Simon owns 113,664,297 shares of Properties common stock, or approximately 99.9% of the outstanding shares entitled to vote at the special meeting. Accordingly, if Simon votes its shares in favor of the merger, as it is expected to do, the merger will be approved.

No Solicitation of Proxies

Neither Properties nor Simon is soliciting any proxies for use at the special meeting. Holders of Properties common stock may vote in person at the special meeting or by appointing someone who attends the special meeting as their proxy.

Simon will pay the entire cost of printing this information statement-prospectus and all filing fees paid to the SEC and other regulatory fees incurred in connection with the merger.

14

THE MERGER

General

We are furnishing this information statement-prospectus to you in connection with the proposed merger of Properties with and into Simon. Although a special meeting will be held to vote on the merger, Simon already owns sufficient shares of Properties common stock to approve the merger.

This information statement-prospectus also constitutes a prospectus of Simon, which is a part of the registration statement on Form S-4 filed by Simon with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933 in order to register the shares of Simon preferred stock to be issued to the holders of Properties preferred stock in the merger. A total of 8,000,000 shares of Simon 8³/4% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock and 3,000,000 shares of Simon 7.89% Series G Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock will be issued in the merger.

Purpose and Reasons for the Merger

The purpose of the merger is to simplify Simon's organizational structure. In 1998, Simon DeBartolo Group, Inc. (Properties' predecessor) and Corporate Property Investors, Inc. (Simon's predecessor) combined their business operations. In order to achieve certain tax and business objectives, Properties became a separate REIT subsidiary of Simon with Simon owning in excess of 99.9% of the outstanding Properties common stock. In addition, the two publicly-held outstanding classes of Properties preferred stock remained outstanding after the combination. Properties has no assets other than its 48.2% interest in the Operating Partnership. Properties has no business activities other than as serving as a non-managing general partner of the Operating Partnership.

Simon believes that it is no longer necessary or desirable to maintain Properties as a separate, but substantially wholly-owned, subsidiary of Simon. In deciding to undertake the merger, Simon considered the following factors, among others:

	Properties has no business activities other than as serving as a non-managing general partner of the Operating Partnership and no assets other than its 48.2% interest in the Operating Partnership;
_	the need for Properties to meet the requirements for qualifying as a REIT for federal income tax purposes and the costs of maintaining Properties as a separate public company including eliminating fees associated with SEC reporting and related legal and accounting fees, which Simon anticipates costs approximately \$25,000 per year;
_	there are no material adverse tax consequences that will result from merging Properties into Simon at present;
_	the amount of cash to be paid to holders of common stock reflects the current value of Properties' percentage interest in the Operating Partnership; and

the terms of the classes of Simon preferred stock to be issued in the merger are identical to the terms of the corresponding classes of outstanding Properties preferred stock.

Determination of Merger Consideration

The Board of Directors of Simon approved the merger agreement on May 8, 2001. The merger agreement specified both the amount of cash to be paid to holders of Properties common stock and the terms of the Simon preferred stock to be issued to holders of Properties common stock.

Determination of Cash Merger Consideration. Simon determined that the amount of cash to be paid for each share of Properties common stock should be equal to the value of one share of Simon common stock as determined by the average of the closing prices per share as reported by the New

15

York Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading days ended May 3, 2001. Simon believed that this was appropriate because under the partnership agreement for the Operating Partnership, units of partnership interest held by limited partners may be exchanged on a one-for-one basis for shares of Simon common stock.

Determination of Stock Merger Consideration. Simon determined that the classes of preferred stock to be issued on a share-for-share basis in the merger should have identical terms to the outstanding classes of preferred stock of Properties, including identical terms with regard to the following matters:

_	distributions, payment dates and provisions regarding accrued cumulative distributions;
_	liquidation rights;
_	redemption terms and conditions including dates when first redeemable and redemption prices;
_	voting rights; and
_	conversion rights.

For a description of the terms of the Simon preferred stock to be issued in the merger, see "Description of Simon Preferred Stock to be Issued in the Merger."

Recommendation of Board of Directors

As the owner of 99.9% of Properties common stock, Simon controls Properties. The persons who serve as the Board of Directors of Simon also serve as the directors of Properties. Although the Board of Directors of Simon believe that the merger is fair to stockholders of Properties from a financial pont of view, Simon has not obtained any appraisal of Properties or fairness opinion with

respect to the merger. Because of the perception that a conflict of interest may exist, the Boards of Directors of Simon and Properties are making no recommendation with regard to how a holder of Properties common stock should vote on the merger or whether such holder should exercise appraisal rights under the MGCL.

Conversion of Securities

At the effective time of the merger, each share of Properties common stock (and any fractional interest), other than shares held by Simon and shares held by persons who properly exercise their rights as described below under "—Appraisal Rights," will be automatically converted into the right to receive the cash provided for in the merger agreement. From and after the effective time, all shares of Properties common stock will no longer be outstanding and will be canceled and retired and will cease to exist. Each holder of a stock certificate formerly representing shares of Properties common stock will after the effective time cease to have any rights with respect to the shares, other than the right to receive the cash payment for their shares of Properties common surrender of the stock certificate or in the case of stockholders who are entitled to and who properly exercise their appraisal rights, the right to receive payment of the fair value of their shares.

In addition, at the effective time of the merger each share of Properties 8³/4% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock will be automatically converted into the right to receive one share of Simon 8³/4% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock and each share of Properties 7.89% Series C Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock will be automatically converted into the right to receive one share of Simon 7.89% Series G Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock. From and after the effective time, any certificates for shares of Properties preferred stock will evidence ownership of the class of Simon preferred stock into which they were converted.

Holders of Properties common stock will not receive any interest on the merger consideration payable to them. Payment of the merger consideration to a person who is not the registered holder of a

16

stock certificate is conditioned upon the surrendered certificate being properly endorsed and otherwise in proper form for transfer, as determined by Mellon Investor Services LLC (the "exchange agent"). Further, the person requesting payment will be required to pay any transfer or other taxes required because of the payment to a person other than the registered holder of the stock certificate, or establish to the satisfaction of the exchange agent that any necessary tax has been paid or is not payable. Six months after the effective time, Simon may require the exchange agent to deliver to it any cash made available to the exchange agent which has not been disbursed to Properties common stockholders. Neither the exchange agent nor Simon will be liable to any former holder of Properties common stock for any amount paid pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar law.

Conditions to the Merger

The completion of the merger depends upon meeting a limited number of conditions, including the following:

the absence of any statute, injunction or other order that has the effect of making the merger illegal or otherwise prohibits consummation of the merger;

the effectiveness of the registration statement of which this information statement-prospectus forms a part and the absence of an order suspending the effectiveness of the registration statement;

the authorization for issuance on the New York Stock Exchange of the shares of Simon 8³/4% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock issuable under the merger to the holders of Properties 8³/4% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock; and

the receipt by Simon of a tax opinion regarding certain tax matters relating to the merger, including that the merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a reorganization.

Accounting Treatment

The merger, if completed, will be accounted for as the acquisition of a minority interest by Simon using the purchase method of accounting.

Regulatory Approvals

There are no federal or state regulatory approvals required that have not already been obtained, nor any regulatory requirements not already complied with, in connection with the consummation of the merger by Properties or Simon, except for (1) the requirements of the MGCL and the Delaware General Corporation Law (the "DGCL") relating to the completion of the merger and (2) the requirements of the federal and state securities laws.

Restrictions on Sales of Shares by Affiliates of Properties and Simon

The shares of Simon preferred stock to be issued in the merger will be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and will be freely transferable under the Securities Act, except for shares issued to any person who is deemed to be an "affiliate" of either of Properties or Simon at the time of the merger. Persons who may be deemed to be affiliates include individuals or entities that control, are controlled by, or are under the common control of Properties and Simon and may include the officers and directors of Simon, as well as its principal stockholders. Affiliates may not sell their shares of Simon preferred stock acquired in the merger except pursuant to:

an effective registration statement under the Securities Act covering the resale of those shares;

an exemption under paragraph (d) of Rule 145 under the Securities Act; or

any other applicable exemption under the Securities Act.

17

Simon's registration statement on Form S-4, of which this information statement-prospectus forms a part, does not cover the resale of shares of Simon preferred stock to be received by affiliates in the merger.

Appraisal Rights

If the merger is completed, holders of Properties common stock who do not vote for the adoption of the merger agreement and who otherwise comply with the provisions of Sections 3-201 *et seq.* of the MGCL summarized below will be entitled to an appraisal by the Circuit Court for Baltimore City, Maryland of the "fair value" of their shares of Properties common stock. Holders of Properties preferred stock do not have appraisal rights.

To perfect their appraisal rights holders of Properties common stock must strictly comply with the procedures in Sections 3-201 *et seq.* Failure to comply strictly with these procedures will result in the loss of appraisal rights.

Under the MGCL, each holder of shares of Properties common stock will be entitled to demand and receive payment of the fair value of the holder's shares in cash, if the holder

before or at the special meeting, files with Properties a written objection to the merger,
does not vote in favor of the merger, and
within 20 days after articles of merger have been accepted for record by the Maryland State Department of Assessments and Taxation (the "Maryland Department"), makes written demand on Simon for payment of his or her shares, stating the number of shares for which payment is demanded.
Any written objection should be sent to Properties. Any stockholder who fails to comply with all of the requirements described above will be bound by the terms of the merger. A demand for payment may be withdrawn only with the consent of Simon. Fair value will be determined as of the close of business on the date of the stockholders' vote on the merger.
Simon will promptly deliver or mail to each dissenting stockholder written notice of the date of acceptance of the articles of merger for record by the Maryland Department. Simon may also deliver or mail to each objecting stockholder a written offer to pay for his or her stock at a price deemed by Simon to be the stock's fair value. Within 50 days after acceptance of the articles of merger for record by the Maryland Department, either Simon or any objecting stockholder who has not received payment for his or her shares may petition the Circuit Court for Baltimore City, Maryland, for an appraisal to determine the fair value of the shares. If the court finds that an objecting stockholder is entitled to appraisal of his or her stock, the court will appoint three disinterested appraisers to determine the fair value of the shares on terms and conditions the court determines proper, and appraisers will, within 60 days after appointment (or a longer period as the court may direct) file with the court and mail to each party to the proceeding their report stating their conclusion as to the fair value of the shares. Within 15 days after the filing of the report, any party may object to the report and request a hearing on the matter. The court will, upon motion of any party, enter an order either confirming, modifying or rejecting the report and, if confirmed or modified, enter judgment directing the time within which payment must be made. If the appraisers' report is rejected, the court may determine the fair value of the shares of the objecting stockholders or may remit the proceeding to the same or other appraisers. Any judgment entered pursuant to a court proceeding will include interest from the date of the stockholders' vote on the action to which objection was made, unless the court finds that the stockholder's refusal to accept a written offer to purchase the stock made by Simon as described above was arbitrary and vexatious or not in good faith. Costs of the proceeding (not including attorneys' fees) will be dete
18
At any time after the filing of a petition for appraisal, the court may require any dissenting stockholder to submit his or her certificates representing shares to the clerk of the court for notation of the pendency of the appraisal proceedings. To receive payment, whether by agreement with Simon or pursuant to a judgment, the stockholder must surrender the stock certificates indorsed in blank and in proper form for transfer. A stockholder demanding payment for shares will not have the right to receive any dividends or distribution payable to holders of record after the close of business on the date of the stockholders' vote and will cease to have any rights as a stockholder with respect to the shares except the right to receive payment of the fair value of the shares. The stockholder's rights may be restored only upon the withdrawal, with the consent of Simon, of the demand for payment, the failure of either party to file a petition for appraisal within the time required, a determination of the court that the stockholder is not entitled to an appraisal, or the abandonment or rescission of the merger.
This summary of the rights of dissenting stockholders does not purport to be a complete statement of the procedures to be followed by stockholders desiring to exercise their dissenters' rights. The preservation and exercise of dissenters' rights are conditioned on strict adherence to the applicable provisions of the MGCL. Each holder of Properties common stock desiring to exercise dissenters' rights should refer to Sections 3-201 <i>et seq.</i> , entitled "Rights of Objecting Stockholders," of the MGCL, a copy of which is attached as Appendix B to this information statement-prospectus, for a complete statement of the stockholder's rights and the steps which must be followed in connection with the exercise of those rights.
ALL WRITTEN DEMANDS FOR APPRAISAL MUST BE MAILED OR DELIVERED TO:
SIMON PROPERTY GROUP, INC. 115 WEST WASHINGTON STREET INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204 ATTN: CORPORATE SECRETARY
OR SHOULD BE DELIVERED TO THE SECRETARY AT THE PROPERTIES SPECIAL MEETING BEFORE THE VOTE ON THE MERGER AGREEMENT.
FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES
The following discussion summarizes the material United States federal income tax considerations relevant to the merger that are applicable to holders of Properties common and preferred stock. This discussion is based on currently existing provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, existing Treasury Regulations thereunder and current administrative rulings and court decisions, all of which are subject to change. Any such change, which may or may not be retroactive, could alter the tax consequences described herein.
Properties stockholders should be aware that this discussion does not deal with all federal income tax considerations that may be relevant to particular Properties stockholders in light of their particular circumstances, including insurance companies, tax-exempt organizations, financial institutions, broker-dealers, foreign persons, stockholders who own their stock as part of a hedge, appreciated financial position, straddle or conversion transaction, stockholders who do not own their stock as a capital asset and stockholders who have acquired their stock upon the exercise of employee options or otherwise as compensation. In addition, this discussion does not address the tax consequences of the merger under foreign, state or local tax laws.
Accordingly, Properties stockholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors as to the specific tax consequences of the merger, including the applicable federal, state, local and foreign tax consequences to them of the merger.
19
As a condition to the consummation of the merger, Simon will receive an opinion from Baker & Daniels regarding certain federal tax matters relating to the merger, including that the merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and that each of Simon and Properties will be a party to the reorganization. As a reorganization, the U.S. federal income tax consequences can be summarized as follows:
no gain or loss will be recognized by Properties or Simon as a result of the merger.
— no gain or loss will be recognized by the holders of either class of Properties preferred stock upon the conversion of their shares into the corresponding class of Simon preferred stock.
— the tax basis of Simon preferred stock received by holders of Properties preferred stock in the merger will be equal to the tax basis of the shares of Properties preferred stock exchanged therefor in the merger.
the holding period for the shares of Simon preferred stock received by each holder of Properties preferred stock in the merger will include the holding period for the shares of Properties preferred stock exchanged therefor in the merger.
a holder of Properties common stock will generally recognize capital gain or loss measured by the difference between the amount of cash received and the tax basis of the holder's shares. Any such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the holding period of the Properties common stock as of the effective date of the merger exceeded one year.

under the Internal Revenue Code, a holder of Properties common stock may be subject, under certain circumstances, to backup withholding at a rate of 31% with respect to the amount of cash received in the merger unless the holder provides proof of an applicable exemption or a correct taxpayer identification number and otherwise complies with the applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules are not an additional tax and may be refunded or credited against the holder's federal income tax liability if the required information is furnished to the Internal Revenue Service.

in general, a holder of Properties common stock who exercises statutory appraisal rights will recognize gain or loss measured by the difference between the amount of cash received and the basis in the shares of Properties common stock exchanged therefor.

A holder of Properties common stock should be aware that the tax basis of the holder's common stock will be less than the price the holder paid for such stock because a portion of the dividends paid by Properties represented a return of capital which resulted in a reduction in basis of the common stock with respect to which the dividends were paid.

INFORMATION ABOUT PROPERTIES AND SIMON

Simon

Simon owns, operates, manages, leases, acquires, expands and develops real estate properties, primarily regional malls and community shopping centers. Simon has elected to be taxed as a "real estate investment trust" or REIT for federal income tax purposes. SPG Realty Consultants, Inc. ("SRC") is Simon's "paired share" affiliate which means that fractional interests of SRC's common stock are paired with shares of Simon's common stock and preferred stock which is convertible into Simon common stock. The shares of Simon preferred stock to be issued in the merger will not be paired with SRC common stock.

The core of Simon's business originated with the shopping center business of Melvin Simon, Herbert Simon, David Simon and other members and associates of the Simon family. Simon has grown

20

significantly by acquiring properties and merging with other real estate companies, including the merger with DeBartolo Realty Corporation in 1996 and the combination with Corporate Property Investors. Inc. in 1998.

As of March 31, 2001, Simon and its majority-owned subsidiary, Simon Property Group, L.P. (the "Operating Partnership"), owned or held interests in 250 income-producing properties, consisting of 164 regional malls, 72 community shopping centers, five specialty retail centers, four office and mixed-use properties, and five value-oriented super regional malls located in a total of 36 states. The Operating Partnership also has interests in five additional properties in Europe. The U.S. properties have over 183.6 million square feet of gross leaseable area of which Simon owns approximately 110.4 million square feet.

Corporate Property Investors, the predecessor of Simon, was organized as a Massachusetts business trust in 1971 and reorganized as a Delaware corporation in 1998.

Properties

Properties is a substantially wholly-owned subsidiary of Simon. Properties is a non-managing general partner and owns a 48.2% interest in the Operating Partnership. Properties has no other assets or business activities.

Properties was organized as a Maryland corporation in 1993 and elected to be taxed as a REIT for federal income tax purposes beginning in 1994. Properties changed its name from Simon Property Group, Inc. to Simon DeBartolo Group, Inc. following the 1996 merger with DeBartolo Realty Corporation. As a result of the combination with Corporate Property Investors, Inc. in 1998, Properties changed its name to SPG Properties, Inc.

Offices

The principal executive offices of both Simon and Properties are located at National City Center, 115 West Washington Street, Suite 15 East, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204. Our telephone number is (317) 636-1600. Our world wide web site address is www.simon.com. The information in our web site is not incorporated by reference into this information statement- prospectus.

POLICIES OF SIMON FOLLOWING THE MERGER

The following is a discussion of investment policies, financing policies and policies with respect to certain other activities of Simon which we expect to continue following the merger. The policies may be amended or rescinded from time to time following the merger at the discretion of the Simon Board of Directors without a vote of the stockholders of Simon.

Investment Policies

Simon will conduct all its investment activities through the Operating Partnership for as long as such partnership exists. Simon's primary business objective will be to increase Funds From Operations per share and the value of its properties and operations. It is intended that Simon will achieve these objectives by pursuing an aggressive leasing strategy; continuing to improve the performance of its properties through both traditional and innovative management techniques; where appropriate, renovating and/or expanding its properties; developing new shopping centers whenever such development meets the economic criteria of Simon; and acquiring additional shopping centers and the portfolios of other retail real estate companies that meet its investment criteria, although no assurance can be given that Simon will achieve such objectives. Simon's policy will be to develop and acquire properties primarily for generation of current income and long-term value appreciation. Simon will not

21

have a policy limiting the amount or percentage of assets that may be invested in any particular property or type of property or in any geographic area.

Simon may purchase or lease properties for long-term investment, develop or redevelop its properties or sell such properties, in whole or in part, when circumstances warrant. Simon currently participates and may continue to participate with other entities in property ownership, through joint ventures or other types of co-ownership. Equity investments may be subject to existing mortgage financing and other indebtedness that have priority over the equity interest of Simon.

While Simon emphasizes equity real estate investments, Simon may, in its discretion, invest in mortgages (which may or may not be insured by a governmental agency) and other real estate interests consistent with its qualification as a REIT. It is not intended that Simon invest to a significant extent in mortgages or deeds of trust, but it may invest in participating or convertible mortgages if Simon concludes that it may benefit from the cash flow or any appreciation in the value of the property.

Subject to the percentage ownership limitations and gross income tests necessary for REIT qualification under the Internal Revenue Code, Simon may also invest in securities of other entities engaged in real estate activities or securities of other issuers. Simon may invest in the securities of other issuers in connection with acquisitions of indirect interests in real estate (normally general or limited partnership interests in special purpose partnerships owning one or more properties). Simon may in the future acquire all or substantially all of the securities or assets of other REITs, management companies or similar entities where such investments would be consistent with its investment policies. It is not intended that Simon invest in securities of other issuers (other than the Operating Partnership and certain wholly-owned subsidiaries and to acquire interests in real estate) for the purpose of exercising control. It is not intended that Simon's investments in securities will require it to register as an "investment company" under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and it is intended that Simon divest securities before any such registration would be required.

Financing Policies

Simon does not maintain a policy of limiting its ratio of debt to total market capitalization. Certain agreements relating to indebtedness of Simon do, however, set forth restrictions on the amount of indebtedness that it is permitted to incur. See "RISK FACTORS—Simon Has a Substantial Debt Burden that Could Affect its Future Operations."

To the extent that the Simon Board of Directors determines to seek additional capital, Simon may raise such capital through additional equity offerings, debt financing or retention of cash flow (subject to provisions in the Internal Revenue Code requiring the distribution by a REIT of a certain percentage of taxable income and taking into account taxes that would be imposed on undistributed taxable income), or a combination of these methods. If the Simon Board of Directors determines to raise additional equity capital, it may, without stockholder approval, issue additional shares of Simon common stock or other capital stock of Simon up to the amount of its authorized capital in any manner (and on such terms and for such consideration) as it deems appropriate, including in exchange for property. Such securities may be senior to the outstanding classes of Simon common stock and may include additional classes of preferred stock (which may be convertible into Simon common stock). Existing stockholders will have no preemptive right to purchase shares in any subsequent offering of securities by Simon, and any such offering could cause a dilution of a stockholder's investment in Simon.

It is anticipated that, following the merger, any additional borrowings would be made through the Operating Partnership, although Simon might incur borrowings that would be reloaned to the Operating Partnership. Borrowings may be in the form of bank borrowings, publicly and privately placed debt instruments, or purchase money obligations to the sellers of properties, any of which indebtedness may be unsecured or may be secured by any or all of the assets of Simon, SRC, the Operating Partnership or any existing or new property-owning partnership and may have full or limited recourse to all or any portion of the assets of any of the foregoing. Although Simon may borrow to fund the payment of dividends, it currently has no intention or expectation that it will do so.

22

Simon may seek to obtain unsecured or secured lines of credit or may determine to issue debt securities (which may be convertible into capital stock or be accompanied by warrants to purchase capital stock) or to sell or securitize its lease receivables. The proceeds from any borrowings may be used to finance acquisitions, to develop or redevelop properties, to refinance existing indebtedness, for working capital or capital improvements, or for meeting the income distribution requirements applicable to REITs if Simon has income without the receipt of cash sufficient to enable it to meet such distribution requirements. Simon also may determine to finance acquisitions through the exchange of properties or issuance of additional Units in the Operating Partnership, shares of common stock, shares of preferred stock or other securities. The ability to offer Units to transferors may result in a beneficial structure for the transferors because the exchange of Units for properties may defer the recognition of gain for tax purposes by the transferor and may be an advantage for Simon since certain investors may be limited in the number of shares of Simon capital stock that they may purchase. To the extent that the Simon Board of Directors determines to obtain additional debt financing, it is intended that Simon (or an entity owned or controlled by Simon) do so generally through mortgages on properties and drawings against revolving lines of credit in a manner consistent with its debt capitalization policy. These mortgages may be recourse, non-recourse or cross-collateralized. Simon will not have a policy limiting the number or amount of mortgages that may be placed on any particular property, but mortgage financing instruments usually limit additional indebtedness on such properties.

Policies With Respect To Certain Other Activities

It is not intended that Simon make investments other than as previously described. It is intended that Simon make investments in such a manner as to be consistent with the REIT requirements of the Internal Revenue Code, unless, because of changing circumstances or changes in such REIT requirements, the Simon Board of Directors determines that it is no longer in the best interests of Simon to qualify as a REIT. Simon has authority to offer shares of its capital stock or other securities in exchange for property and to repurchase or otherwise reacquire its shares or any other securities and may engage in such activities in the future. Simon may in the future issue shares of Simon common stock to holders of Units in the Operating Partnership upon exercise of such holders' rights under the Operating Partnership. Simon has not made loans to other entities or persons, including its officers and directors, other than M.S. Management Associates, Inc. (the "Management Company"). Simon may in the future make loans to joint ventures in which it participates. It is not intended that Simon engage in (i) trading, underwriting or agency distribution or sale of securities of other issuers and (ii) the active trade of loans and investments.

Certain Activities of Simon Prior to the Merger

Since the combination with Corporate Property Investors, Inc. in 1998 (the "CPI Merger"), Simon has

issued (i) 6,047,399 shares of Simon common stock upon the conversion of Series A and B preferred stock of Simon; (ii) 155,132 shares of Simon common stock in lieu of preferred dividends on Series A preferred stock of Simon; (iii) 1,879,055 restricted shares of Simon common stock, net of forfeitures, under The Simon Property Group 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (the "1998 Plan") and (iv) 164,898 shares of Simon common stock upon exercise of stock options under the 1998 Plan;

borrowed a maximum of \$830.0 million under its \$1.25 billion unsecured revolving credit facility; the amount borrowed as of March 31, 2001 was \$645.0 million;

as a co-borrower with the Operating Partnership, borrowed a maximum of \$1.4 billion under a \$1.4 billion medium term unsecured bridge loan taken out in connection with the CPI Merger; the amount borrowed as of March 31, 2001 was \$435.0 million;

23

not made loans to other entities or persons, including its officers and directors, other than the Management Company;

not invested in the securities of other issuers (other than the Operating Partnership and certain wholly-owned subsidiaries and to acquire interests in real estate) for the purpose of exercising control;

not underwritten securities of other issuers:

not engaged in the purchase and sale (or turnover) of investments, except for the sale of 1,408,450 shares of Chelsea GCA Realty, Inc. common stock, a publicly-traded REIT, for \$50.0 million, which shares were acquired prior to the CPI Merger;

repurchased (directly or through subsidiaries) 2,098,555 shares of Simon common stock for cash and

provided annual reports containing financial statements certified by independent public accountants and quarterly reports containing unaudited financial statements to its security holders.

DESCRIPTION OF SIMON PREFERRED STOCK TO BE ISSUED IN THE MERGER

This section of the information statement-prospectus describes the 8^3 /4% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the "Simon Series F Preferred Shares") that will be issued by Simon on a share-for-share basis to holders of Properties 8^3 /4% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock and the 7.89% Series G Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock (the "Simon Series G Preferred Shares") that will be issued by Simon on a share-for-share basis to holders of Properties 7.89% Series C Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock. On May 8, 2001, the Board of Directors of Simon adopted resolutions establishing the designation and issuance of the Simon Series F Preferred Shares and the Simon Series G Preferred Shares"). The following summary of the terms and provisions of the Simon Preferred Shares does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the

pertinent sections of the Simon Charter and the Certificates of the Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights for the Simon Preferred Shares which have been filed as exhibits to the registration statement which includes this information statement-prospectus.

The registrar, transfer agent and distributions disbursing agent for the Simon Preferred Shares will be Mellon Investor Services LLC.

Application has been made to list the Simon Preferred Shares on the New York Stock Exchange, subject to official notice of issuance. If so approved, trading of the Simon Preferred Shares on the New York Stock Exchange is expected to commence after the effective date of the merger.

Simon Series F Preferred Shares

Authorized Shares. The Certificate of the Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights for the Simon Series F Preferred Shares establishes 8,000,000 shares authorized for issuance which is also the number of outstanding shares of the Properties Series B Preferred Shares.

Distributions. Holders of the Simon Series F Preferred Shares are entitled to receive, when and as authorized by the Board of Directors of Simon, out of funds legally available for the payment of distributions, cumulative cash distributions at the rate of 8³/4% of the liquidation preference per annum. Distributions accrue and are cumulative from the date of original issue and are payable quarterly in arrears on or about the last day of each March, June, September and December or, if not a business day, the succeeding business day (each, a "Distribution Payment Date"). The first distribution on the

24

Simon Series F Preferred Shares will be paid on September 30, 2001. Any distributions payable for any partial period will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Distributions will be payable to holders of record as they appear in the share records of Simon at the close of business on the applicable record date, which shall be the first day of the calendar month in which the applicable Distribution Payment Date falls or such other date designated by the Board of Directors for the payment of distributions that is not more than 30 nor less than 10 days prior to such Distribution Payment Date (each, a "Distribution Record Date").

No distributions on the Simon Series F Preferred Shares may be authorized by the Board of Directors or be paid or set apart for payment by Simon at such time as the terms and provisions of any agreement of Simon, including any agreement relating to its indebtedness, prohibits such authorization, payment or setting apart for payment or provides that such authorization, payment or setting apart for payment would constitute a breach thereof or a default thereunder, or if such authorization or payment are restricted or prohibited by law.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, distributions on the Simon Series F Preferred Shares will accrue whether or not Simon has earnings, whether or not there are funds legally available for the payment of such distributions and whether or not such distributions are authorized. Accrued but unpaid distributions on the Simon Series F Preferred Shares will not bear interest and holders will not be entitled to any distributions in excess of full cumulative distributions as described above.

Any distribution payment made on the Simon Series F Preferred Shares will first be credited against the earliest accrued but unpaid distribution due with respect to such shares which remains payable.

If, for any taxable year, Simon elects to designate as "capital gain distributions" (as defined in Section 857 of the Internal Revenue Code), any portion (the "Capital Gains Amount") of the distributions paid or made available for the year to holders of all classes of shares (the "Total Distributions"), then the portion of the Capital Gains Amount that is allocable to the holders of Simon Series F Preferred Shares will be the amount that the total distributions paid or made available to the holders of the Simon Series F Preferred Shares for the year bears to the Total Distributions.

Liquidation Rights. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of Simon, the holders of the Simon Series F Preferred Shares are entitled to be paid out of the assets of Simon legally available for distribution to its shareholders liquidating distributions in cash or property at its fair market value as determined by the Board of Directors in the amount of a liquidation preference of \$25.00 per share, plus an amount equal to any accrued and unpaid distributions to the date of such liquidation, dissolution or winding up, before any distribution of assets is made to holders of Simon common stock or any other capital shares that rank junior to the Simon Series F Preferred Shares as to liquidation rights. After payment of the full amount of the liquidating distributions to which they are entitled, the holders of Simon Series F Preferred Shares will have no right or claim to any of the remaining assets of Simon. In the event that, upon any such voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the available assets of Simon are insufficient to pay the amount of the liquidating distributions on all outstanding Simon Series F Preferred Shares and the corresponding amounts payable on all shares of other classes or series of shares of capital stock of Simon ranking on parity with the Simon Series F Preferred Shares in the distribution of assets, then the holders of the Simon Series F Preferred Shares and all other such classes or series of shares of capital stock shall share ratably in any such distribution of assets in proportion to the full liquidating distributions to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled.

If liquidating distributions shall have been made in full to all holders of preferred stock, the remaining assets of Simon shall be distributed among the holders of any other classes or series of shares of capital stock ranking junior to the preferred stock upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, according to their respective rights and preferences and in each case according to their respective

25

number of shares. For such purposes, the consolidation or merger of Simon with or into any other corporation, trust or entity, or the sale, lease or conveyance of all or substantially all of the property or business of Simon, will not be deemed to constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Simon.

Redemption. The Simon Series F Preferred Shares are not redeemable prior to September 29, 2006. On and after September 29, 2006, Simon, at its option upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' written notice, may redeem the Simon Series F Preferred Shares, in whole or in part, at any time or from time to time, at a redemption price of \$25.00 per share, plus all accrued and unpaid distributions thereon to the date fixed for redemption (except as provided below), without interest, to the extent Simon will have funds legally available therefor. The redemption price of the Simon Series F Preferred Shares (other than any portion thereof consisting of accrued and unpaid distributions) may be paid solely from the sale proceeds of other capital stock of Simon and not from any other source. For purposes of the preceding sentence, "capital stock" means any common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares, interests, participation, or other ownership interests (however designated) and any rights (other than debt securities convertible into or exchangeable for equity securities) or options to purchase any of the foregoing. Holders of Simon Series F Preferred Shares to be redeemed shall surrender such shares at the place designated in such notice and shall be entitled to the redemption price and any accrued and unpaid distributions payable upon such redemption following such surrender. If notice of redemption of any Simon Series F Preferred Shares has been given and if the funds necessary for such redemption have been set aside by Simon in trust for the benefit of the holders of any Simon Series F Preferred Shares so called for redemption, then from and after the redemption price and staributions will cease to accrue on such shares, such shares shall no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, except the right to receive the redemption price. If fewer than all of the outstanding Simon Series F Preferred Shares are to be redeemed shall be selected pro rata (as nearly as may

Notice of redemption will be given by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of New York, such publication to be made once a week for two successive weeks commencing not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date. A similar notice will be mailed by Simon, postage prepaid, not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date, addressed to the respective holders of record of the Simon Series F Preferred Shares to be redeemed at their respective addresses as they appear on the share transfer records of Simon. No failure to give such notice or any defect thereto or in the mailing thereof shall affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Simon Series F Preferred Shares except as to the holders to whom notice was defective or not given. Each notice shall state: (i) the redemption price; (ii) the number of Simon Series F Preferred Shares to be redeemed; (iv) the place or places where the certificates evidencing the Simon Series F Preferred Shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price; and (v) that distributions on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on such redemption date. If fewer than all the Simon Series F Preferred Shares held by any holder are to be redeemed, the notice mailed to such holder shall also specify the number of shares to be redeemed from such holder.

The holders of Simon Series F Preferred Shares at the close of business on a Distribution Record Date will be entitled to receive the dividend payable with respect to such Simon Series F Preferred Shares on the corresponding Distribution Payment Date notwithstanding the redemption thereof between such Distribution Record Date and the corresponding Distribution Payment Date or Simon's default in the payment of the distribution due. Except as provided above, Simon will make no payment or allowance for unpaid distributions, whether or not in arrears, on Simon Series F Preferred Shares to be redeemed.

The Simon Series F Preferred Shares have no stated maturity and will not be subject to any sinking fund or mandatory redemption provisions (except as provided under "—Restrictions on Ownership" below).

Voting Rights. In any matter in which the Simon Series F Preferred Shares are entitled to vote (as expressly provided herein, as may be required by law or as required by the rules of the New York Stock Exchange), including any action by written consent, each Simon Series F Preferred Share is entitled to one vote.

The holders of Simon Series F Preferred Shares are entitled to vote with all outstanding shares of common stock and the Simon Series G Preferred Shares in the election of persons to the Board of Directors (other than the directors to be elected by specified classes of Simon common stock).

In addition, if distributions on the Simon Series F Preferred Shares are in arrears for six or more quarterly periods, whether or not such quarterly periods are consecutive, holders of Simon Series F Preferred Shares (voting separately as a class with all other series of preferred shares upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable) will be entitled to vote for the election of two additional directors to serve on the Board of Directors of Simon until all distribution arrearages have been paid.

Conversion; Not Paired Shares. The Simon Series F Preferred Shares are not convertible into or exchangeable for any other property or securities of Simon and are not paired with common stock of SRC.

Simon Series G Preferred Shares

Authorized Shares. The Certificate of the Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights for the Simon Series G Preferred Shares establishes 3,000,000 shares authorized for issuance which is also the number of outstanding shares of the Properties Series C Preferred Shares.

Distributions. Holders of Simon Series G Preferred Shares are entitled to receive, when and as authorized by the Board of Directors of Simon, out of funds legally available for the payment of distributions, cumulative cash distributions at the rate of 7.89% of the liquidation preference per annum per share to and including September 30, 2012; thereafter, beginning October 1, 2012 at 9.89% of the liquidation preference per annum per share. Distributions accrue and are cumulative from the date of original issue and are payable quarterly in arrears on or about the last day of each March, June, September and December or, if not a business day, the succeeding business day (each, a "Payment Date"). The first distribution on the Simon Series G Preferred Shares will be paid on September 30, 2001. Any distributions payable for any partial period will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Distributions will be payable to holders of record as they appear in the share records of Simon at the close of business on the applicable record date, which shall be the first day of the calendar month in which the applicable Payment Date falls or such other date designated by the Board of Directors for the payment of distributions that is not more than 30 nor less than 10 days prior to such Payment Date (each, a "Record Date").

No distributions on the Simon Series G Preferred Shares may be authorized by the Board of Directors of Simon or be paid or set apart for payment by Simon at such time as the terms and provisions of any agreement of Simon, including any agreement relating to its indebtedness, prohibits such authorization, payment or setting apart for payment or provides that such authorization, payment or setting apart for payment would constitute a breach thereof or a default thereunder, or if such authorization or payment are restricted or prohibited by law.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, distributions on the Simon Series G Preferred Shares will accrue whether or not Simon has earnings, whether or not there are funds legally available for the payment of such distributions and whether or not such distributions are authorized. Accrued but unpaid Simon Series G Preferred Shares will not bear interest and holders will not be entitled to any distributions in excess of full cumulative distributions as described above.

27

Any distribution payment made on the Simon Series G Preferred Shares will first be credited against the earliest accrued but unpaid distribution due with respect to such shares which remains payable.

If, for any taxable year, Simon elects to designate as "capital gain dividends" (as defined in Section 857 of the Internal Revenue Code), any portion (the "Capital Gains Amount") of the distributions paid or made available for the year to holders of all classes of shares (the "Total Distributions"), then the portion of the Capital Gains Amount that is allocable to the holders of Simon Series G Preferred Shares will be the ratio of the total distributions paid or made available to the holders of the Simon Series G Preferred Shares for the year over the Total Distributions.

Liquidation Rights. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of Simon, the holders of the Simon Series G Preferred Shares are entitled to be paid out of the assets of Simon legally available for distribution to its stockholders liquidating distributions in cash or property at its fair market value as determined by the Board of Directors in the amount of a liquidation preference of \$50.00 per share, plus an amount equal to any accrued and unpaid distributions to the date of such liquidation, dissolution or winding up, before any distribution of assets is made to holders of Simon common stock or any other capital shares that rank junior to the Simon Series G Preferred Shares as to liquidation rights. After payment of the full amount of the liquidating distributions to which they are entitled, the holders of Simon Series G Preferred Shares will have no right or claim to any of the remaining assets of Simon. In the event that, upon any such voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the available assets of Simon are insufficient to pay the amount of the liquidating distributions on all outstanding Simon Series G Preferred Shares and the corresponding amounts payable on all shares of other classes or series of shares of capital stock of Simon ranking on parity with the Simon Series G Preferred Shares in the distribution of assets, then the holders of the Simon Series G Preferred Shares and all other such classes or series of shares of capital stock shall share ratably in any such distribution of assets in proportion to the full liquidating distributions to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled.

If liquidating distributions shall have been made in full to all holders of preferred stock, the remaining assets of Simon shall be distributed among the holders of any other classes or series of shares of capital stock ranking junior to the preferred stock upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, according to their respective rights and preferences and in each case according to their respective number of shares. For such purposes, the consolidation or merger of Simon with or into any other corporation, trust or entity, or the sale, lease or conveyance of all or substantially all of the property or business of Simon, will not be deemed to constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Simon.

Redemption. The Simon Series G Preferred Shares are not redeemable prior to September 30, 2007. On and after September 30, 2007, Simon, at its option upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' written notice, may redeem the Simon Series G Preferred Shares, in whole or in part, at any time or from time to time, at a redemption price of \$50.00 per share, plus all accrued and unpaid distributions thereon to the date fixed for redemption (except as provided below), without interest, to the extent Simon will have funds legally available therefor. The redemption price of the Simon Series G Preferred Shares (other than any portion thereof consisting of accrued and unpaid distributions) may be paid solely from the sale proceeds of other capital stock of Simon and not from any other source. For purposes of the preceding sentence, "capital stock" means any common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares, interests, participation, or other ownership interests (however designated) and any rights (other than debt securities convertible into or exchangeable for equity securities) or options to purchase any of the foregoing. Holders of Simon Series G Preferred Shares to be redeemed shall surrender such shares at the place designated in such notice and shall be entitled to the redemption price and any accrued and unpaid distributions payable upon such redemption following such surrender. If notice of redemption of any Simon Series G Preferred Shares has been given and if the funds necessary for such redemption have been set aside by Simon in trust for the

28

benefit of the holders of any Simon Series G Preferred Shares so called for redemption, then from and after the redemption date distributions will cease to accrue on such shares, such shares shall no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, except the right to receive the redemption price. If fewer than all of the outstanding Simon Series G Preferred Shares are to be redeemed, the shares to be redeemed shall be selected pro rata (as nearly as may be practicable without creating fractional shares) or by any other equitable method determined by Simon.

Notice of redemption will be given by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of New York, such publication to be made once a week for two successive weeks commencing not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date. A similar notice will be mailed by Simon, postage prepaid, not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date, addressed to the respective holders of record of the Simon Series G Preferred Shares to be redeemed at their respective addresses as they appear on the share transfer records of Simon. No failure to give such notice or any defect thereto or in the mailing thereof shall affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Simon Series G Preferred Shares except as to the holder to whom notice was defective or not given. Each notice shall state: (i) the redemption date; (ii) the redemption price; (iii) the number of Simon Series G Preferred Shares to be redeemed; (iv) the place or places where the certificates evidencing the Simon Series G Preferred Shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price; and (v) that distributions on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on such redemption date. If fewer than all the Simon Series G Preferred Shares held by any holder are to be redeemed, the notice mailed to such holder shall also specify the number of shares to be redeemed from such holder.

The holders of Simon Series G Preferred Shares at the close of business on a Record Date will be entitled to receive the distribution payable with respect to such Simon Series G Preferred Shares on the corresponding Payment Date notwithstanding the redemption thereof between such Record Date and the corresponding Payment Date or Simon's default in the payment of the

distribution due. Except as provided above, Simon will make no payment or allowance for unpaid distributions, whether or not in arrears, on Simon Series G Preferred Shares to be redeemed.

The Simon Series G Preferred Shares have no stated maturity and will not be subject to any sinking fund or mandatory redemption provisions (except as provided under "—Restrictions on Ownership" below).

Voting Rights. In any matter in which the Simon Series G Preferred Shares are entitled to vote (as expressly provided herein, as may be required by law or as required by the rules of the New York Stock Exchange), including any action by written consent, each Simon Series G Preferred Share is entitled to one vote.

The holders of the Simon Series G Preferred Shares are entitled to vote with all outstanding shares of common stock and the Simon Series F Preferred Shares in the election of persons to the Simon Board of Directors (other than the directors to be elected by specified classes of Simon common stock).

In addition, if distributions on the Series G Preferred Shares are in arrears for six or more quarterly periods, whether or not such quarterly periods are consecutive, holders of Simon Series G Preferred Shares (voting separately as a class with all other series of preferred stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable) will be entitled to vote for the election of two additional directors to serve on the Board of Directors of Simon until all distribution arrearages have been paid.

Conversion; Not Paired Shares. The Simon Series G Preferred Shares are not convertible into or exchangeable for any other property or securities of Simon and are not paired with common stock of SRC.

29

Restrictions On Ownership

Simon's Charter contains certain restrictions on the number of shares of capital stock of Simon (including the Simon Preferred Shares) that individual stockholders may own. For Simon to qualify as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code, in addition to other requirements, not more than 50% in value of the outstanding capital stock of Simon may be owned, directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the Internal Revenue Code to include certain entities) during the last half of a taxable year (other than the first year) and the capital stock also must be beneficially owned by 100 or more persons during at least 335 days of a taxable year of 12 months or during a proportionate part of a shorter taxable year. In part because the management of Simon currently believes it is essential for Simon to maintain its status as a REIT, the provisions of Simon's Charter with respect to Simon Excess Stock contain restrictions on the acquisition of its capital stock intended to ensure compliance with these requirements.

Simon's Charter provides that, subject to certain specified exceptions, no stockholder may own, or be deemed to own by virtue of the attribution provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, more than the ownership limit (the "Ownership Limit"), which is equal to 8% (18% in the case of the Simons) of any class of capital stock of Simon (calculated based on the lower of outstanding shares, voting power or value). In the event of a purported transfer or other event that would, if effective, result in the ownership of shares of stock in violation of the Ownership Limit, such transfer or other event with respect to that number of shares that would be owned by the transferee in excess of the Ownership Limit would be deemed void ab initio and the intended transferee would acquire no rights in such shares of stock. Such shares of stock would automatically be converted into shares of Simon Excess Stock according to rules set forth in Simon's Charter, to the extent necessary to ensure that the purported transfer or other event does not result in ownership of shares of stock in violation of the Ownership Limit. The Simon Board of Directors may exempt a person from the Ownership Limit if they receive a ruling from the IRS or an opinion of tax counsel that such ownership will not jeopardize Simon's status as a REIT. Stock of Simon that is held by a "qualified trust" within the meaning of Section 856(h)(3) of the Code is treated as held proportionately by the beneficiaries of such trust.

Upon a purported transfer or other event that results in either Simon Excess Common Stock or Simon Excess Preferred Stock (collectively, "Simon Excess Stock"), the Simon Excess Stock will be deemed to have been transferred to a trustee to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of a qualifying charitable organization designated by Simon. Such Simon Excess Stock will be issued and outstanding stock of Simon and it will be entitled to dividends equal to any dividends which are declared and paid on such stock. Any dividend or distribution paid prior to the discovery by Simon that stock has been converted into Simon Excess Stock is to be repaid upon demand. The recipient of such dividend will be personally liable to the trust. Any dividend or distribution declared but unpaid will be rescinded as void ab initio with respect to such shares of stock and will automatically be deemed to have been declared and paid with respect to the shares of Simon Excess Stock into which such shares were converted. Such Simon Excess Stock will also be entitled to such voting rights as are ascribed to the stock from which such shares of Simon Excess Stock were converted. Any voting rights exercised prior to discovery by Simon that shares of stock were converted to Simon Excess Stock will be rescinded and recast as determined by the trustee

While Simon Excess Stock is held in trust, an interest in that trust may be transferred by the purported transferee, or other purported holder with respect to such Simon Excess Stock only to a person whose ownership of the shares of stock would not violate the Ownership Limit, at which time the Simon Excess Stock will be automatically exchanged for the same number of shares of stock of the same type and class as the shares of stock for which the Simon Excess Stock was originally exchanged.

Simon's Charter contains provisions that are designed to ensure that the purported transferee or other purported holder of the Simon Excess Stock may not receive in return for such a transfer an

30

amount that reflects any appreciation in the shares of stock for which such Simon Excess Stock was outstanding. Any amount received by a purported transferee or other purported holder in excess of the amount permitted to be received must be paid over to the trust. If the foregoing restrictions are determined to be void or invalid by virtue of any legal decision, statute, rule or regulation, then the intended transferee or holder of any Simon Excess Stock may be deemed, at the option of Simon, to have acted as an agent on behalf of the trust in acquiring or holding such Simon Excess Stock and to hold such Simon Excess Stock on behalf of the trust.

Simon's Charter further provides that Simon may purchase, for a period of 90 days during the time the Simon Excess Stock is held by the trustee in trust, all or any portion of the Simon Excess Stock from the original transferee-stockholder at the lesser of the price paid for the stock by the purported transferee (or if no notice of such purchase price is given, at a price to be determined by the Simon Board of Directors, in its sold discretion, but no lower than the lowest market price of such stock at any time prior to the date Simon exercises its purchase option) and the closing market price for the stock on the date Simon exercises its option to purchase. The 90-day period begins on the date of the violative transfer or other event if the original transferee-stockholder gives notice to Simon of the transfer or (if no notice is given) the date the Simon Board of Directors determines that a violative transfer or other event has been made.

Simon's Charter further provides that in the event of a purported issuance or transfer that would, if effective, result in Simon being beneficially owned by fewer than 100 persons, such issuance or transfer would be deemed null and void ab initio, and the intended transferee would acquire no rights to the stock.

All certificates representing shares of any class of stock of Simon bear a legend referring to the restrictions described above.

All persons who own, directly or by virtue of the attribution provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, more than 5% (or such other percentage as may be required by the Code or regulations promulgated thereunder) of the outstanding stock must file an affidavit with Simon containing the information specified in the Simon Charter before January 30 of each year. In addition, each stockholder shall, upon demand, be required to disclose to Simon in writing such information with respect to the direct, indirect and constructive ownership of shares as the Board of Directors deems necessary to comply with the provisions of the Simon Charter or the Internal Revenue Code applicable to a REIT.

The Simon Excess Stock provision will not be removed automatically even if the REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code are changed so as to no longer contain any ownership concentration limitation or if the ownership concentration limitation is increased. In addition to preserving Simon's status as a REIT, the Ownership Limit may have the effect of precluding an acquisition of control of Simon without the approval of the Simon Board of Directors.

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN PROPERTIES AND SIMON ORGANIZATIONAL DOCUMENTS AND MARYLAND AND DELAWARE LAW

This section of the information statement-prospectus describes certain differences between the organization documents of Properties and Simon and while we believe that the description covers the material differences between the two, this summary may not contain all of the information that is important to you. You should carefully read this entire document and the other documents we refer to for a more complete understanding of these differences.

Properties is organized under the laws of the State of Maryland and Simon is organized under the laws of the State of Delaware. The following discussion summarizes certain material differences between the Properties Charter and Properties By-laws and the Simon Charter and Simon By-laws and

between certain provisions of the MGCL and the DGCL affecting stockholders' rights. This summary is not complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to the MGCL and the DGCL and also to the Properties Charter, the Properties By-laws, the Simon Charter, and the Simon By-laws. Copies of the Properties Charter, Properties By-laws, Simon Charter, and Simon By-laws, are available for inspection at the principal executive offices of Simon and copies will be sent to holders of Properties stock upon request.

Number Of Directors

Under the Properties Charter, the number of directors of Properties shall never be less than the minimum number permitted by the MGCL. At least a majority of the directors shall be Independent Directors. There are currently twelve directors serving on the Properties Board of Directors.

Under the Simon Charter, the number of directors of Simon shall never be less than the minimum number permitted by the DGCL. In addition, so long as any shares of both Simon Class B Common Stock and Simon Class C Common Stock are outstanding, the number of directors of Simon shall be thirteen; so long as any shares of Simon Class B Common Stock (but no Simon Class C Common Stock) are outstanding, the number of directors of Simon shall be nine; so long as any shares of Simon Class C Common Stock (but no Simon Class B Common Stock) are outstanding, the number of directors of Simon shall be nine; and so long as no shares of Simon Class B Common Stock or Simon Class C Common Stock are outstanding, the number of directors of Simon Shall be fixed by the Simon Board of Directors from time to time. There are currently twelve directors serving on the Simon Board of Directors.

Removal Of Directors

Under the MGCL, except as otherwise provided in a corporation's charter, the stockholders generally may remove any director, with or without cause, by the vote of a majority of all the votes entitled to be cast in the election of the directors. The Properties Charter provides that, subject to the rights of the holders of any class of stock separately entitled to elect one or more directors, a director may only be removed for cause, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the holders of at least a majority of the combined voting power of all the votes entitled to be cast in the election of the directors.

Under the DGCL, the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares entitled to vote at the election of directors is required to remove directors, with or without cause, except that whenever the holders of a class or series are entitled to elect one or more directors by the certificate of incorporation, then with respect to the removal without cause of a director or directors so elected, the vote of the holders of the outstanding shares of that class or series and not the vote of the outstanding shares as a whole shall be required. The Simon Charter provides that, subject to the rights of holders of any class separately entitled to elect one or more directors, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the combined voting power of all shares entitled to vote in the election for directors is required to remove a director with or without cause.

Filling Vacancies On The Board Of Directors

Under the MGCL, stockholders may elect a successor to fill a vacancy on the board of directors which results from the removal of a director elected by the stockholders to fill a vacancy which results from the removal of a director serves for the balance of the term of the removed director. Otherwise, the MGCL provides that a majority of the remaining directors may fill a vacancy, unless it results from an increase in the size of the board. Any vacancy resulting from the increase in the number of directors may be filled by a majority of the entire board. A director elected by the board of directors to fill a vacancy serves until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until his successor is elected and qualified. There is no provision in the MGCL providing for the filling of vacancies on the board of directors by Maryland courts.

32

The DGCL provides that vacancies and newly created directorships may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office or a sole remaining director (even though less than a quorum) unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation or by-laws. However, the DGCL also provides that if the directors then in office constitute less than a majority of the corporation's whole board of directors (as constituted prior to any such increase), then, upon application by stockholders representing at least 10% of outstanding shares entitled to vote for such directors, the Court of Chancery may order a stockholder election of directors to be held. The Simon Charter provides substantially the same provisions with respect to the filling of vacancies of the Board of Directors as the Properties Charter.

Interested Director Transactions

Under both the MGCL and the DGCL, certain contracts or transactions in which one or more of a corporation's directors has an interest are not void or voidable solely because of such interest if such contract or transaction (a) is ratified by the stockholders (as set forth below) or a majority of disinterested members of the board of directors or a committee thereof if the material facts are disclosed or known thereto, or (b) was fair (and under the MGCL, reasonable) to the corporation at the time it was approved. Under the MGCL, such ratification must be made by a majority of the disinterested stockholders. Under the DGCL, any ratification of such a contract or transaction by the stockholders must be made by a majority of all stockholders in good faith.

Amendment To Charter Or Certificate Of Incorporation

Under the MGCL, the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter is required to amend a corporation's charter; however, the charter of the corporation may provide for a greater or lesser proportion of the votes entitled to be cast to approve a charter amendment as long as the vote is not less than a majority of the votes entitled to be cast.

Under the DGCL, the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote is required to amend a corporation's certificate of incorporation. Under the DGCL, the holders of the outstanding shares of a class shall be entitled to vote as a class upon a proposed amendment, whether or not entitled to vote thereon by the certificate of incorporation, if the amendment would increase or decrease the aggregate number of authorized shares of such class, increase or decrease the par value of the shares of such class, or alter or change the powers, preferences, or special rights of the shares of such class so as to affect them adversely. If any proposed amendment would alter or change the powers, preferences, or special rights of one or more series of any class so as to affect them adversely, but shall not so affect the entire class, then only the shares of the series so affected by the amendment shall be considered a separate class for the purposes of this provision.

The Properties Charter provides that the Properties Charter may be amended by the affirmative vote of the holders of not less than a majority of the aggregate votes entitled to be cast thereon (considered for these purposes as a single class) at either a special or annual meeting of the stockholders. However, the Properties Charter provides that the affirmative vote of 80% of the aggregate votes entitled to be cast, voting as a single class, is required to amend certain sections of the charter, including the provisions that require the Properties Board of Directors to consider constituencies other than stockholders when considering Business Combinations, eliminate the personal liability of a director to Properties, and address stockholder proposals. In addition, amendments with respect to the composition of the Properties Board of Directors will require the affirmative vote of not less than 80% of the aggregate votes entitled to be cast thereon, voting as a single class. The Simon Charter provides substantially the same provisions as the Properties Charter, except that there is no similar provision requiring the Simon Board of Directors to consider constituencies other than stockholders.

33

Amendment Of By-laws

Under the MGCL, the power to adopt, amend, or repeal a corporation's by-laws is vested in the corporation's stockholders, except to the extent the corporation's charter or by-laws vest it in the board of directors. The Properties By-laws provide, subject to the certain provisions relating to the number and election of directors as contained in the Properties Charter, that the By-laws may be repealed, altered, amended or rescinded (a) by the stockholders (considered for this purpose as one class) by the affirmative vote of not less than 80% of all the votes entitled to be cast generally in the election of directors which are cast on the matter at any meeting of the stockholders called for that purpose or (b) by a vote of two-thirds of the Properties Board of Directors at a meeting of the Properties Board of Directors (except for the provision in the Properties By-laws which requires the affirmative vote of six Independent Directors to cause the sale of property owned by partnerships in which Properties acts as a general partner).

Under the DGCL, the by-laws may be amended by the action of the stockholders and, if so provided in the charter, the directors. The Simon Charter provides that the By-laws may be amended, altered, or repealed only by the affirmative vote of 80% of the stockholders or by a vote of two-thirds of the Simon Board of Directors (including at least a majority of the directors elected by the Simon Class B Common Stock and at least one director elected by Simon Class C Common Stock), at a meeting of such Board of Directors.

Stockholder Meetings And Provisions For Notices; Proxies

Under the MGCL and the DGCL, stockholder meetings may be held at any place, as provided in the by-laws. However, the MGCL requires the meetings to be held in the United States. The DGCL has no such requirement. Under both the MGCL and the DGCL, written notice of a stockholders' meeting must state the place, date, and time of the meeting, and if a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is to be held. Under the Properties By-laws, not less than 10 days nor more than 90 days before the date of every stockholders' meeting, the Properties Secretary shall give to each stockholder entitled to vote at the meeting and each other stockholder entitled to notice of the meeting, written or printed notice stating the time and place of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, either by mail or by presenting it to him personally or by leaving it at his residence or usual place of business. The Simon By-laws provide that written notice of every meeting of the stockholders, stating the place, date, and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, will be given not less than 10 nor more than 60 calendar days before the date of the meeting to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at such meeting.

Under the MGCL, proxies are valid for 11 months from their date, unless the proxy otherwise provides. Under the DGCL, however, stockholder proxies are valid for three years from their date unless the proxy provides for a longer period.

Voting By Stockholders

The Properties Charter provides that holders of Properties common stock and all other capital stock with the right to vote for the election of directors are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders. Holders of Properties voting stock have no right to cumulative voting for the election of directors. The Properties By-laws provide that, in all elections for directors, every stockholder shall have the right to vote, in person or by proxy, the shares owned of record by the stockholder. At all meetings of stockholders, the proxies and ballots shall be received by the chairman of the meeting. If demanded by stockholders entitled to cast 10% in number of votes entitled to be cast, or if ordered by the chairman of the meeting, the voting shall be conducted

34

by two inspectors. The stockholders at any meeting may choose the inspectors, however, no candidate for election as a director at a meeting shall serve as an inspector at any meeting of stockholders

The Simon Charter provides that holders of Simon Common Stock, Simon Class B Common Stock and Simon Class C Common Stock and all other capital stock with the right to vote for the election of directors are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders, other than the election of directors elected exclusively by the holders of Simon Class B Common Stock and the election of directors elected exclusively by the holders of Simon Class C Common Stock. Holders of Simon voting stock have no right to cumulative voting for the election of directors. Under the Simon By-laws, at all meetings of stockholders the proxies and ballots shall be received by the chairman of the meeting. If demanded by stockholders entitled to cast 10% in number of votes entitled to be cast, or if ordered by the chairman, the voting shall be taken either by ballot or conducted by an inspector.

Stockholder Action Without A Meeting

Under the MGCL, stockholders may act by written consent only if all stockholders entitled to vote on the matter that is the subject of the written consent sign the consent. Under the DGCL, unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, actions may be taken by the stockholders of a Delaware corporation by written consent, provided that the written consent is signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take the action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote on the matter were present and voted. The Simon Charter provides that stockholder actions must be taken at an annual or special meeting and may not be taken by written consent, except that holders of Simon Class B Common Stock and Simon Class C Common Stock may act by written consent without a meeting on matters submitted exclusively to the vote of the holder of Simon Class B Common Stock or Simon Class C Common Stock.

Business Combinations

Under the MGCL, certain "business combinations" (including a merger, consolidation, share exchange, or, in certain circumstances, an asset transfer or issuance or reclassification of equity securities) between a Maryland corporation and (i) any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the voting power of the corporation's shares, (ii) an affiliate of such corporation who, at any time within the two-year period prior to the date in question, was the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting power of the then-outstanding voting stock of the corporation (in either case, an "Interested Stockholder"), or (iii) any affiliate of an Interested Stockholder, are prohibited for five years after the most recent date on which the Interested Stockholder became an Interested Stockholder, and thereafter must be recommended by the board of directors of the Maryland corporation and approved by the affirmative vote of at least (a) 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of its outstanding voting shares, and (b) two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of such outstanding voting shares, other than shares held by the Interested Stockholder with whom (or with whose affiliate) the business combination is to be effected unless, among other conditions, the corporation's stockholders receive a minimum price (as defined in the MGCL) for their shares and the consideration is received in cash or in the same form as previously paid by the Interested Stockholder becomes an Interested Stockholder.

As a Delaware corporation, Simon is subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL ("Section 203"). In general, Section 203 prohibits a public Delaware corporation from engaging in a "business combination" with an "interested stockholder" for a period of three years after the time at which such person became an interested stockholder unless: (1) prior to such time, the Board of

35

Directors approved either the business combination or transaction in which the stockholder became an interested stockholder; or (2) upon becoming an interested stockholder, the stockholder owned at least 85% of the corporation's outstanding voting stock other than shares held by directors who are also officers and certain employee benefit plans; or (3) the business combination is approved by both the Board of Directors and by holders of at least $66^2/3\%$ of the corporation's outstanding voting stock (at a meeting and not by written consent), excluding shares owned by the interested stockholder. For these purposes, the terms "business combination" includes mergers, asset sales and other similar transactions with an "interested stockholder," and "interested stockholder," and

Appraisal Rights

Under the MGCL, holders of Properties common stock will be entitled to appraisal rights under Maryland law with respect to the merger. See "THE MERGER—APPRAISAL RIGHTS".

Under the DGCL, stockholders of a corporation who do not consent to certain major corporate transactions may, under varying circumstances, be entitled to appraisal rights pursuant to which such stockholders may receive cash in the amount of the fair market value of their shares in lieu of the consideration which otherwise would have been received in the transaction. Unless the corporation's certificate of incorporation provides otherwise, such appraisal rights are not available in certain circumstances, including without limitation, (a) with respect to the sale, lease, or exchange of all or substantially all of the assets of a corporation, (b) with respect to a merger or consolidation by a corporation the shares of which are either listed on a national securities exchange or are held of record by more than 2,000 holders if such stockholders receive only shares of the surviving corporation or shares of any other corporation which are either listed on a national securities exchange or held of record by more than 2,000 holders, plus cash in lieu of fractional shares, or (c) to stockholders of a corporation surviving a merger if no vote of the stockholders of the surviving corporation is required to approve the merger because the merger agreement does not amend the existing certificate of incorporation, each share of the surviving corporation outstanding prior to the merger is an identical outstanding or treasury share after the merger, and the number of shares to be issued in the merger does not exceed 20% of the shares of the surviving corporation outstanding immediately prior to the merger and if certain other conditions are met.

Dividends

The MGCL permits a corporation, subject to any provision in its charter, to make a distribution, including dividends, redemptions or stock repurchases, unless, after such distribution, the corporation would not be able to pay its debts as they become due in the usual course of business or the corporation's total assets would be less than the sum of its liabilities and, unless the charter provides otherwise, liquidation preferences of stock senior to the stock on which the distribution is proposed to be made. For purposes of determining whether a distribution is lawful, the corporation's assets may be based upon fair value or any other method of valuation that is reasonable under the circumstances.

The DGCL permits a corporation to declare and pay dividends out of surplus or, if there is no surplus, out of net profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared and/or for the preceding fiscal year as long as the amount of capital of the corporation following the declaration and payment of the dividend is not less than the aggregate amount of the capital represented by the issued and outstanding stock of all classes having a preference upon the distribution of assets. In addition, the DGCL generally provides that a corporation may redeem or repurchase its shares

36

to a preference are outstanding, any of its shares if it retires such shares upon acquisition and reduces the corporation's capital in connection therewith (and provided, that after any reduction in capital made in connection with such retirement of shares, the corporation's remaining assets must be sufficient to pay any debts not otherwise provided for).

Limitation Of Liability And Indemnification Of Directors And Officers

The MGCL permits a Maryland corporation to include in its charter a provision limiting the liability of its directors and officers to the corporation and its stockholders for money damages except for liability resulting from (a) actual receipt of an improper benefit or profit in money, property or services or (b) active and deliberate dishonesty established by a final judgment as being material to the cause of action. The Properties Charter contains such a provision which eliminates such liability to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law.

The Properties Charter authorizes Properties, to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law, to indemnify and to pay or reimburse reasonable expenses in advance of final disposition of a proceeding to any director or officer, whether serving Properties or, at its request, any other entity. The Properties Charter and Properties Bylaws also permit Properties to indemnify and advance expenses to any employee or agent of Properties.

The MGCL requires a corporation (unless its charter provides otherwise, which the Properties Charter does not) to indemnify a director or officer who has been successful, on the merits or otherwise, in the defense of any proceeding to which he is made a party by reason of his service in that capacity. The MGCL permits a corporation to indemnify its present and former directors and officers, among others, against judgments, penalties, fines, settlements and reasonable expenses actually incurred by them in connection with any proceeding to which they may be made a party by reason of their service in those or other capacities unless it is established that (a) the act or omission of the director or officer was material to the matter giving rise to the proceeding and (i) was committed in bad faith or (ii) was the result of active and deliberate dishonesty, (b) the director or officer actually received an improper personal benefit in money, property or services or (c) in the case of any criminal proceeding, the director or officer had reasonable cause to believe that the act or omission was unlawful. However, under the MGCL, a Maryland corporation may not indemnify for an adverse judgment in a suit by or in the right of the corporation or for a judgment of liability on the basis that personal benefit was improperly received, unless in either case a court orders indemnification and then only for expenses. In addition, the MGCL permits a corporation to advance reasonable expenses to a director or officer upon the corporation's receipt of (a) a written affirmation by the director or officer of his good faith belief that he has met the standard of conduct necessary for indemnification and (b) a written undertaking by him or on his behalf to repay the amount paid or reimbursed by the corporation if it shall ultimately be determined that the standard of conduct was not met.

Simon's Charter provides that no director will be personally liable to the corporation or to its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director; provided, however, that such provision will not eliminate or limit the liability of a director for: (1) any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the corporation and its stockholders; (2) acts or omissions not in good faith; (3) any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit; or (4) any matter in respect of which such director would be liable under Section 174 of the DGCL. These provisions may have the effect of discouraging stockholders' actions against directors. The personal liability of a director for violation of the federal securities laws is not limited or otherwise affected. In addition, these provisions do not affect the ability of stockholders to obtain injunctive or other equitable relief from the courts with respect to a transaction involving gross negligence on the part of a director.

Simon's Charter provides that Simon shall indemnify to the fullest extent permitted under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware any person who was or is a party or is threatened to

37

be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative by reason of the fact that he is or was a director or officer of Simon, is or was serving at the request of Simon, as a director, officer or trustee of or in any other capacity with another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of Simon and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. The DGCL provides that indemnification is mandatory where a director or officer has been successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any proceeding covered by the indemnification statute.

The DGCL generally permits indemnification for expenses incurred in the defense or settlement of third-party actions or action by or in right of the corporation, and for judgments in third party actions, provided there is a determination by directors who were not parties to the action, or if directed by such directors, by independent legal counsel or by a majority vote of a quorum of the stockholders, that the person seeking indemnification acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the corporation, or in a criminal proceeding that the person had no reason to believe his or her conduct to be unlawful. Without court approval, however, no indemnification may be made in respect of any action by or in right of the corporation in which such person is adjudged liable. The DGCL states that the indemnification provided by statute shall not be deemed exclusive of any rights under any by-law, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise. In addition, the liability of officers may not be eliminated or limited under Delaware law.

The right of indemnification, including the right to receive payment in advance of expenses, conferred by Simon's Charter is not exclusive of any other rights to which any person seeking indemnification may otherwise be entitled.

38

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following tables present unaudited historical pro forma financial statements for Simon and unaudited pro forma per share data for Simon. Since Simon owns 99.9% of the common stock of Properties, Simon consolidates Properties. The historical financial information is derived from the financials statements of Simon, incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus. The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed statements of operations data set forth the results of continuing operations for the three months ended March 31, 2001 and for the year ended December 31, 2000, as if the merger had become effective at the beginning of calendar 2001 and 2000, respectively. The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed balance sheet data sets forth the financial position as of March 31, 2001, as if the merger had become effective on March 31, 2001.

Preparation of the pro forma financial information and pro forma adjustments was based on assumptions we deemed appropriate. The assumptions give effect to the merger under the purchase method of accounting and the conversions described above in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States. This pro forma financial data is unaudited and is not necessarily indicative of the results of the future operations of the combined entity or the actual results that would have occurred had the merger been consummated prior to the periods indicated, nor does it purport to represent the future financial position and results of operations for future periods. The pro forma financial information should be read in conjunction with the historical financial statements of Properties and Simon, incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus.

Simon Property Group, Inc. Consolidated

Pro Forma Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2001 (Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) (Unaudited)

	Simon (Historical)	Pro Fo Adjusti		Total Pro Forma
ASSETS:				
Investment properties, at cost	\$ 13,034,425	\$	_	\$ 13,034,425
Less—accumulated depreciation	1,547,632		_	1,547,632

	11,486,793	_	11,486,793
Cash and cash equivalents	128,312	_	128,312
Tenant receivables and accrued revenue, net	257,267	_	257,267
Notes and advances receivable from Management Company and affiliates	214,584	_	214,584
Note receivable from the SRC Operating Partnership (Interest at 8%, due 2009)	1,432	_	1,432
Investment in unconsolidated entities, at equity	1,321,520	_	1,321,520
Goodwill, net	38,091	_	38,091
Deferred costs and other assets, net	250,606	_	250,606
Minority interest, net	44,211	_	44,211
	\$ 13,742,816	\$ _	\$ 13,742,816

39

${\bf Simon\ Property\ Group,\ Inc.\ Consolidated}$

Pro Forma Balance Sheet (continued)

As of March 31, 2001 (Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) (Unaudited)

	Simon (Historical)	Simon Pro Forma (Historical) Adjustments	
JABILITIES:			
Mortgages and other indebtedness	\$ 8,747,21	8 \$ —	\$ 8,747,218
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	415,72	7 —	415,727
Cash distributions and losses in partnerships and joint ventures at equity	47,15	7 —	47,157
Accrued dividends	19,29	3 —	19,293
Other liabilities	141,61	1	141,611
Total liabilities	9,371,00	6	9,371,006
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES			
IMITED PARTNERS' INTEREST IN THE SPG OPERATING PARTNERSHIP	887,25	5 —	887,255
IMITED PARTNERS' PREFERRED INTEREST IN THE SPG OPERATING PARTNERSHIP	150,85	2 —	150,852
REFERRED STOCK OF SUBSIDIARY Liquidation value \$350,000 and \$0 (pro forma), espectively	339,93	3 (339,933)(A)	_
HAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (750,000,000 total shares authorized, \$.0001 par value, 37,996,000 shares of excess common stock):			
All series of preferred stock, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 5,881,116 and 16,881,116 (pro forma) issued and outstanding, respectively. Liquidation values \$559,065 and \$909,065 (pro forma), respectively	538,73	6 339,933(A)	878,669
Common stock, \$.0001 par value, 400,000,000 shares authorized, 171,330,445 issued and outstanding	1	7 —	17
Class B common stock, \$.0001 par value, 12,000,000 shares authorized, 3,200,000 issued and outstanding		1 —	1
Class C common stock, \$.0001 par value, 4,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding	_		_
Capital in excess of par value	3,312,15	8 —	3,312,158
Accumulated deficit	(768,20	4) —	(768,204)
Unamortized restricted stock award	(29,16	8) —	(29,168)
Accumulated other comprehensive income	(7,44	1) —	(7,441)
Common stock held in treasury at cost, 2,098,555 shares	(52,32	9) —	(52,329)
Total shareholders' equity	2,993,77	0 339,933	3,333,703
	\$ 13,742,81	6 \$ —	\$ 13,742,816

40

Simon Property Group, Inc. Consolidated Pro Forma Statement of Operations For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2001 (Dollars in thousands, except per share amount) (Unaudited)

	(I	Simon (Historical)		Pro Forma Adjustments	 Total Pro Forma
REVENUE:					
Minimum rent	\$	307,151	\$	_	\$ 307,151
Overage rent		9,883		_	9,883

Tenant reimbursements	148,514	_	148,514
Other income	24,267	_	24,267
Total revenue	489,815		489,815
EXPENSES:			
Property operating	78,626	<u> </u>	78,626
Depreciation and amortization	106,492	<u> </u>	106,492
Real estate taxes	52,787	_	52,787
Repairs and maintenance	19,727	_	19,727
Advertising and promotion	13,806	_	13,806
Provision for credit losses	2,904	_	2,904
Other	6,896	_	6,896
Total operating expenses	281,238		281,238
OPERATING INCOME	208,577		208,577
	,	_	
NTEREST EXPENSE	157,925		157,925
INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST	50,652	_	50,652
MINORITY INTEREST	(2,238)	_	(2,238
GAIN ON SALES OF ASSETS, NET	2,711		2,711
INCOME BEFORE UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES	51,125	_	51,125
INCOME FROM UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES	11,742	_	11,742
INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE	62,867	_	62,867
LESS:			
LIMITED PARTNERS' INTEREST IN THE SPG			
OPERATING PARTNERSHIP	11,491	_	11,491
PREFERRED DISTRIBUTIONS OF THE SPG OPERATING PARTNERSHIP	2,912	_	2,912
PREFERRED DIVIDENDS OF SUBSIDIARY	7,334	(7,334)(B)	<u> </u>
NET INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF			
ACCOUNTING CHANGE	41,130	7,334	48,464
PREFERRED DIVIDENDS	(9,185)	(7,334)(B)	(16,519
NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE	\$ 31,945	\$ —	\$ 31,945

Note 1 Fees of approximately \$275 associated with the offering of the new preferred stock and the merger of the companies are deemed immaterial and are not reflected in the Pro Forma financial information above.

Note 2 The purchase accounting adjustments related to the acquisition of Properties' minority interest for approximately \$98 are also deemed immaterial and are not presented in the Pro Forma financial information above.

41

Simon Property Group, Inc. Consolidated Pro Forma Statement of Operations For the Year Ended December 31, 2000 (Dollars in thousands, except per share amount) (Unaudited)

	imon storical)	Pro Forma Adjustments	_	 Total Pro Forma
REVENUE:				
Minimum rent	\$ 1,227,857	\$	_	\$ 1,227,857
Overage rent	56,438		_	56,438
Tenant reimbursements	602,829		_	602,829
Other income	125,613		_	125,613
Total revenue	2,012,737		_	2,012,737
EXPENSES:				
Property operating	310,728		_	310,728
Depreciation and amortization	419,922		_	419,922
Real estate taxes	191,180		_	191,180
Repairs and maintenance	73,916		_	73,916
Advertising and promotion	65,470		_	65,470
Provision for credit losses	9,644		_	9,644
Other	32,313		_	32,313

Total operating expenses	1,103,173		1,103,2
OPERATING INCOME	909,564	_	9,909
INTEREST EXPENSE	637,173	_	637,2
INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST	272,391		272,3
MINORITY INTEREST	(10,725)	_	(10,7
GAIN ON SALES OF ASSETS, NET OF ASSET WRITE DOWNS OF \$10,572	9,132		9,3
INCOME BEFORE UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES	270,798	_	270,7
INCOME FROM UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES	84,322	_	84,3
INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE	355,120		355,
LESS:			
LIMITED PARTNERS' INTEREST IN THE SPG			
OPERATING PARTNERSHIP	76,203	_	76,2
PREFERRED DISTRIBUTIONS OF THE SPG OPERATING PARTNERSHIP	11,267	_	11,7
PREFERRED DIVIDENDS OF SUBSIDIARY	29,335	(29,335)(C)
NET INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF			
ACCOUNTING CHANGE	238,315	29,335	267,0
PREFERRED DIVIDENDS	(36,808)		(66,1
NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY			
ITEMS AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE	\$ 201,507	\$ —	\$ 201,5

Note 1 Fees of approximately \$275 associated with the offering of the new preferred stock and the merger of the companies are deemed immaterial and are not reflected in the Pro Forma financial information above.

Note 2 The purchase accounting adjustments related to the acquisition of Properties' minority interest for approximately \$98 are also deemed immaterial and are not presented in the Pro Forma financial information above.

42

Simon Property Group, Inc. Consolidated Pro Forma Earnings Per Share (Unaudited)

	Simon (Historical)		Pro Forma Adjustments		Total Pro Forma	
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:						
Net income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting change for the three months ended						
March 31, 2001	\$	0.19	\$	_	\$	0.19
Net income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting change for the year ended						
December 31, 2000	\$	1.16	\$	_	\$	1.16

The pro forma adjustments included in the unaudited pro forma condensed financial information are based upon currently available information and upon certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable. There can be no assurance that the actual adjustments will not differ significantly from the pro forma adjustments reflected in the pro forma financial information.

Adjustment to pro forma consolidated balance sheet

(A)

To record the conversion of each Properties Series B Preferred Share into one Simon Series F Preferred Share and each Properties Series C Preferred Share into one Simon Series G Preferred Share.

Adjustment to pro forma consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2001

(B)

To reflect the reclassification of preferred dividends of subsidiary to preferred dividends based upon the conversion of each Properties Series B Preferred Share into one Simon Series F Preferred Share and each Properties Series C Preferred Share into one Simon Series C Preferred Share.

 $Adjustment\ to\ pro\ forma\ consolidated\ statement\ of\ operations\ for\ the\ year\ ended\ December\ 31,\ 2000$

(C)
To reflect the reclassification of preferred dividends of subsidiary to preferred dividends based upon the conversion of each Properties Series B Preferred Share into one Simon Series F Preferred Share and each Properties Series C Preferred Share into one Simon Series C Preferred Share.

43

LEGAL MATTERS

EXPERTS

The audited financial statements and schedules incorporated by reference in this information statement-prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement have been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, independent public accountants, as indicated in their reports with respect thereto, and are incorporated by reference in reliance upon the authority of said firm as experts in giving said reports. Reference is made to said reports, which include an explanatory paragraph with respect to the change in the method of accounting for overage rent in 2000 as discussed in Note 15 to the financial statements of Simon and Simon Property Group, L.P.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

If the merger is not completed for any reason, Properties will set a date for its 2001 annual meeting of stockholders. Pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act, Properties stockholders may present proper proposals for inclusion in Properties' proxy statement and for consideration at its 2001 annual meeting of stockholders, in the event the merger is not completed, by submitting the proposals to Properties in a timely manner. In order to be included for the 2001 annual meeting, stockholder proposals must be received by Properties within a reasonable time before the meeting, and must otherwise comply with the requirements of Rule14a-8.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT-PROSPECTUS INCORPORATES DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE, INCLUDING IMPORTANT BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION, WHICH ARE NOT PRESENTED IN OR DELIVERED WITH THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT-PROSPECTUS.

All documents filed by Simon pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this information statement-prospectus and before the effective date of the merger are incorporated by reference into and are deemed to be a part of this information statement-prospectus from the date of filing of those documents.

YOU SHOULD RELY ONLY ON THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT OR THAT TO WHICH WE HAVE REFERRED YOU. WE HAVE NOT AUTHORIZED ANYONE TO PROVIDE YOU WITH ANY INFORMATION THAT IS DIFFERENT.

Properties

Sin

The follow	ng documents, filed by Properties (File No. 1-12618) with the SEC, are hereby incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus:
_	Annual Report on Form 10-K and 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2000; and
_	Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001.
mon	
The follow	ng documents, filed by Simon or Simon and SRC (File No. 1-14469) with the SEC, are hereby incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus:
_	Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000;
_	Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001;
_	Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on February 16, 2001 and May 11, 2001; and
_	Proxy Statement dated April 2, 2001.
	44

Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this information statement-prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this information statement-prospectus or any other subsequently filed document that is deemed to be incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus modifies or supersedes the statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this information statement-prospectus.

The documents incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus are available upon request. Simon will provide a copy of any and all of the information that is incorporated by reference in this information statement-prospectus to any person, without charge, upon written or oral request. If exhibits to the documents incorporated by reference in this information statement-prospectus are not themselves specifically incorporated by reference in this information statement-prospectus, then such exhibits will not be provided. **ANY REQUEST FOR DOCUMENTS SHOULD BE MADE BY JUNE 21, 2001 TO ENSURE TIMELY DELIVERY OF THE DOCUMENTS.**

Requests for documents should be directed to: Simon Property Group, 115 West Washington Street, Suite 15 East, Indianapolis, IN, Attention: Investor Relations (317) 685-7330.

Properties and Simon (and SRC) file reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Copies of these reports, proxy statements and other information may be inspected and copied at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC at:

450 Fifth Street, N.W. Room 1300 Washington, D.C. 20549

Reports, proxy statements and other information concerning Simon may be inspected at:

The New York Stock Exchange 20 Broad Street New York, New York 10005

Copies of these materials can also be obtained by mail at prescribed rates from the Public Reference Room at the SEC, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at (800) SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contained reports, proxy statements and other information regarding each of us. The address of the SEC website is http://www.sec.gov.

Simon has filed a registration statement on Form S-4 under the Securities Act with the SEC with respect to the Simon preferred stock to be issued to holders of Properties preferred stock in the merger. This information statement-prospectus constitutes the prospectus of Simon filed as part of the registration statement. This information statement-prospectus does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement because certain parts of the registration statement are omitted in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. The registration statement and its exhibits are available for inspection and copying as set forth above.

THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT-PROSPECTUS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO SELL, OR A SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO PURCHASE, THE SECURITIES OFFERED BY THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT-PROSPECTUS, IN ANY JURISDICTION TO OR FROM ANY PERSON TO WHOM OR FROM WHOM IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE SUCH OFFER OR SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER IN SUCH JURISDICTION. NEITHER THE DELIVERY OF THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT-PROSPECTUS NOR ANY DISTRIBUTION OF SECURITIES PURSUANT TO THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT-PROSPECTUS SHALL, UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES, CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO

45

CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION SET FORTH OR INCORPORATED INTO THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT-PROSPECTUS BY REFERENCE OR IN THE AFFAIRS OF PROPERTIES OR SIMON SINCE THE DATE OF THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT- PROSPECTUS.

INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This information statement-prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference into this information statement-prospectus (see "WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION") include forward-looking statements about Properties and Simon within the "safe harbor" provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements relate to expectations concerning matters that are not historical facts, such as future financial performance, anticipated developments, business strategy, projected costs and plans and objectives of Simon. Many of these statements are preceded by, followed by or otherwise include the words "anticipates," "expects," "intends," "plans," "believes," "seeks," "estimates" or similar expressions. These statements may be made expressly in this document or may be incorporated by reference to other documents Properties or Simon has filed with the SEC.

Although Simon believes that such forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot assure you that such expectations will prove to be correct. Forward looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause our actual results to be materially different form any future results expressed or implied by us. The risks and uncertainties include those risks, uncertainties and risk factors identified, among other places, under "RISK FACTORS" in this document.

These cautionary statements should not be construed by you as an exhaustive list or as any admission by us regarding the adequacy of disclosures made by either company. Simon cannot always predict or determine after the fact what factors would cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements or other statements. All cautionary statements should be read as being applicable to all forward-looking statements wherever they appear. Simon does not undertake any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed herein might not occur.

46

APPENDIX A AGREEMENT OF MERGER

This Agreement of Merger is made as of May 9, 2001, by and between Simon Property Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Simon"), and SPG Properties, Inc., a Maryland corporation ("Properties").

RECITALS

- A. Each of the Boards of Directors of the parties hereto deem it advisable that Properties merge with and into Simon pursuant to Section 3-105 of the Maryland General Corporation Law and Section 252 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, on the terms and conditions hereof (the "Merger").
- B. The authorized capital stock of Properties consists of: (i) 375,796,000 shares of Common Stock, par value \$.0001 per share ("Properties Common") of which 113,668,027.32 shares are issued and outstanding and of which 113,664,297 shares are owned of record and beneficially by Simon; (ii) 12,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock, par value \$.0001 per share, none of which are issued and outstanding; (iii) 4,000 shares of Class C Common Stock, par value \$.0001 per share, none of which are issued and outstanding; (iv) 250,000,000 shares of Excess Stock, par value \$.0001 per share ("Excess Stock"), none of which are issued and outstanding; (v) 9,200,000 shares of Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, par value \$.0001 per share ("Properties B Preferred") of which 8,000,000 shares are issued and outstanding and (vi) 3,000,000 shares of Series C Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock, par value \$.0001 per share ("Properties C Preferred" and, together with the Properties B Preferred, the "Properties Preferred Stock") of which 3,000,000 shares are issued and outstanding.
- C. The authorized capital stock of Simon consists of 750,000,000 shares, of which (i) 400,000,000 shares are classified as Common Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), (ii) 12,000,000 shares are classified as Class B Common Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), (iii) 4,000 shares are classified as Class C Common Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), (iv) 72,181,502 shares are classified as Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), of which (A) 209,249 shares are classified as 6.50% Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), (B) 5,000,000 shares are classified as 6.50% Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), (C) 209,249 shares are classified as 6.50% Series B Excess Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), (D) 5,000,000 shares are classified as 6.50% Series B Excess Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), (E) 2,700,000 shares are classified as Series C 7.00% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), (F) 2,700,000 shares are classified as Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), (F) 2,700,000 shares are classified as 8.00% Series E Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share), (F) 8,000,000 shares are classified as 8.00% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share) (F) 8,000,000 shares are classified as 8.00% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share) (F) 8,000,000 shares are classified as 8.00% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (par value \$.0001 per share) (F) 9,000,000 shares are classified as 8.0001 per share) (F) 9,000,000 shares are classified as 8.0001 per share) (F) 9,000,000 shares are classified as 8.0001 per share) (F) 9,000,000 shares are classified as 8.0001 per share) (F) 9,000,000 shares are classified as 8.0001 per share) (F) 9,000,000 shares are classified as 8.0001 per share) (F) 9,000,000 shares are classified as 8.0001 per share) (F) 9,000,000 shares are classified as 8.0001 p
- D. The Boards of Directors have been advised that, under Maryland law, the only shares of capital stock of Properties that are eligible to vote on the Merger are the shares of Properties Common.
 - E. The Boards of Directors have been advised that no vote by the stockholders of Simon to approve the Merger is required under Delaware law.

A-1

AGREEMENT

In consideration of the premises and mutual covenants set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

- 1. Effective Time. The Merger shall be effective at the time and on the date set forth in the Articles of Merger to be filed with the Maryland State Department of Assessments and Taxation and in the Certificate of Merger to be filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware.
- 2. *Effects of Merger.* At the Effective Time, Properties shall be merged with and into Simon. Simon shall continue to be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware. In addition, the Merger shall have such other effects as are specified by applicable law.
 - 3. Cancellation and Conversion of Shares. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of any holder of capital stock of Properties,
- (a) Each of the issued and outstanding shares (and any fractional interest therein) of Properties Common that are owned by holders other than Simon other than Dissenting Shares (as hereafter defined) automatically shall be converted into and become the right to receive \$26.28 in cash (the "Common Stock Merger Consideration").
- (b) Each of the issued and outstanding shares of Properties Common that are owned by Simon shall be extinguished and canceled automatically, without any payment or other distribution in respect thereof.
 - (c) Each of the issued and outstanding shares of Properties B Preferred automatically shall be converted into and become the right to receive one share of Simon F Preferred.
- (d) Each of the issued and outstanding shares of Properties C Preferred shall be converted into and become the right to receive one share of Simon G Preferred.

- (e) All of the shares of capital stock of Properties other than Dissenting Shares shall no longer be outstanding and shall be canceled and retired and shall cease to exist, and each holder of any certificate or certificates which immediately prior to the Effective Time represented any such shares (the "Certificates") shall thereafter cease to have any rights with respect to such shares, except the right of such holders to receive, without interest, the Common Stock Merger Consideration or certificates representing the number of shares of Simon Preferred Stock, to which such holder is entitled.
- (f) "Dissenting Shares" shall mean shares of Properties Common held by any person who properly exercises and perfects appraisal rights under Sections 3-201 *et seq.* of the Maryland General Corporation Law as a dissenting shareholder. Holders of Dissenting Shares shall have the rights accorded to them under the Maryland General Corporation Law and shall not receive any part of the Common Stock Merger Consideration.
 - 4. Conditions. The obligations of each party to consummate the Merger shall be subject to the following conditions unless waived by both parties:
 - (a) The holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Properties Common shall have approved and adopted this Agreement and approved the Merger;
- (b) No provision of applicable law or regulation and no judgment, injunction, order or decree shall prohibit or enjoin the consummation of the Merger or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
- (c) The Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") shall have declared the registration statement to be filed by Simon (the "Registration Statement") under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), with respect to the securities to be issued in the Merger effective under

A-2

the Act, and no stop order or similar restraining order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement shall be in effect and no proceedings for such purpose shall be pending before or threatened by the Commission;

- (d) The shares of Simon F Preferred to be issued in the Merger shall have been approved for listing on The New York Stock Exchange, subject to official notice of issuance; and
- (e) There shall have been delivered to Simon an opinion of Baker & Daniels to the effect that the Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
 - 5. Exchange Procedures; Surrender of Certificates.
 - (a) Mellon Investor Services LLC shall act as Exchange Agent in the Merger (the "Exchange Agent").
- (b) As soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Time, the Exchange Agent shall mail to each record holder of any Certificates or Certificates, a letter of transmittal (which shall specify that delivery shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the Certificates shall pass, only upon proper delivery of the Certificates to the Exchange Agent and shall be in such form and have such other provisions as Simon may reasonably specify) (each such letter, the "Merger Letter of Transmittal") and instructions for use in effecting the surrender of the Certificates in exchange for the Common Stock Merger Consideration or the shares of Simon Preferred Stock issuable in connection with the Merger, as the case may be. Upon surrender to the Exchange Agent of a Certificate, together with a Merger Letter of Transmittal duly executed and any other required documents, the holder of such Certificate shall be entitled to receive in exchange therefor solely the Common Stock Merger Consideration or the shares of Simon Preferred Stock issuable in connection with the Merger, as the case may be. In no event shall the holder of any Certificate be entitled to receive interest on any funds to be received in the Merger. If the shares of Simon Preferred Stock issuable in connection with the Merger are to be issued to a person other than a person in whose name a surrendered Certificate is registered, it shall be a condition of issuance that the surrendered Certificate shall be properly endorsed or otherwise in proper form for transfer and that the person requesting such issuance shall pay to the Exchange Agent any required transfer taxes or other taxes or establish to the satisfaction of the Exchange Agent that such tax has been paid or is not applicable
- (c) Unless and until the Certificates evidencing shares of Properties Preferred Stock have been exchanged for shares of Simon Preferred Stock as provided in this Section 5, such Certificates shall evidence ownership of the shares of Simon Preferred Stock into which the shares of Properties Preferred Stock have been converted for all purposes, including the right to receive dividends paid thereon.
- (d) In the event that any Certificate shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the person claiming such Certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed and, if required by Simon in its reasonable discretion, the posting by such person of a bond in such amount as Simon may determine is reasonably necessary as indemnity against any claim that may be made against it with respect to such Certificate, the Exchange Agent shall issue in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificate the Common Stock Merger Consideration or the shares of Simon Preferred Stock issuable in connection with the Merger, as the case may be, deliverable in respect thereof pursuant hereto.
- (e) At or after the Effective Time there shall be no transfers on the stock transfer books of Properties of any shares of capital stock of Properties. If, after the Effective Time, Certificates are presented for transfer, they shall be canceled and exchanged for the Common Stock Merger Consideration or the shares of Simon Preferred Stock issuable in connection with the Merger, as the case may be, as provided in, and subject to the provisions of, this Agreement of Merger.

A-3

- (f) Six (6) months after the Effective Time, Simon may require the Exchange Agent to deliver to it any part of the Common Stock Merger Consideration which has not been disbursed to holders of Properties Common; provided, however, that Simon shall not be liable to any holder of Certificates for the Common Stock Merger Consideration or the shares of Simon Preferred Stock issuable in connection with the Merger, as the case may be, (or dividends or distributions with respect thereto) delivered to a public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar law.
- 6. Delaware Registered Office. The address of the registered office of Simon in Delaware is c/o The Corporation Trust Company, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, County of New Castle, Delaware.
- 7. Maryland Resident Agent. Simon desires to transact business in Maryland as a foreign corporation after the Merger. The name and address of Simon's resident agent in Maryland is c/o The Corporation Trust Incorporated, 300 East Lombard Street, Baltimore, Maryland 21202.
- 8. *Termination*. Subject to applicable law, this Agreement of Merger may be amended, modified, supplemented or abandoned by mutual consent of the parties hereto, at any time prior to the filing of Articles of Merger with the Maryland State Department of Assessments and Taxation and the filing of a Certificate of Merger with the Secretary of State of Delaware.
- 9. Counterparts. This Agreement of Merger may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one agreement.
- 10. *Governing Law.* This Agreement of Merger shall be governed in all respects, including, but not limited to, validity, interpretation, effect and performance, by the internal laws of the State of Delaware without regard to the principles of conflicts of law thereof, except to the extent that Maryland law may apply to Properties or to the obligations of Properties hereunder.
- 11. Section Headings. The section headings in this Agreement of Merger have been inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has caused this Agreement of Merger to be executed on its behalf.

SIMON PROPERTY GROUP, INC.

David Simon,
Chief Executive Officer

SPG PROPERTIES, INC.

By:

David Simon,
Chief Executive Officer

A-4

APPENDIX B—SECTIONS 3-201 ET SEQ. OF THE MARYLAND GENERAL CORPORATION LAW

§ 3-201. "Successor" defined.

- (a) Corporation amending charter. In this subtitle, except as provided in subsection (b) of this section, "successor" includes a corporation which amends its charter in a way which alters the contract rights, as expressly set forth in the charter, of any outstanding stock, unless the right to do so is reserved by the charter of the corporation.
 - (b) Corporation whose stock is acquired. When used with reference to a share exchange, "successor" means the corporation the stock of which was acquired in the share exchange.

§ 3-202. Right to fair value of stock.

- (a) General rule. Except as provided in subsection (c) of this section, a stockholder of a Maryland corporation has the right to demand and receive payment of the fair value of the stockholder's stock from the successor if:
 - (1) The corporation consolidates or merges with another corporation;
 - (2) The stockholder's stock is to be acquired in a share exchange;
 - (3) The corporation transfers its assets in a manner requiring action under § 3-105 (e) of this title;
 - (4) The corporation amends its charter in a way which alters the contract rights, as expressly set forth in the charter, of any outstanding stock and substantially adversely affects the stockholder's rights, unless the right to do so is reserved by the charter of the corporation; or
 - (5) The transaction is governed by § 3-602 of this title or exempted by § 3-603 (b) of this title.
 - (b) Basis of fair value.
 - (1) Fair value is determined as of the close of business:
 - (i) With respect to a merger under § 3-106 of this title of a 90 percent or more owned subsidiary with or into its parent corporation, on the day notice is given or waived under § 3-106; or
 - (ii) With respect to any other transaction, on the day the stockholders voted on the transaction objected to.
 - (2) Except as provided in paragraph (3) of this subsection, fair value may not include any appreciation or depreciation which directly or indirectly results from the transaction objected to or from its proposal
 - (3) In any transaction governed by § 3-602 of this title or exempted by § 3-603 (b) of this title, fair value shall be value determined in accordance with the requirements of § 3-603 (b) of this title.

B-1

- (c) When right to fair value does not apply. Unless the transaction is governed by § 3-602 of this title or is exempted by §3-603 (b) of this title, a stockholder may not demand the fair value of the stockholder's stock and is bound by the terms of the transaction if:
 - (1) The stock is listed on a national securities exchange, is designated as a national market system security on an interdealer quotation system by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or is designated for trading on the NASDAQ Small Cap Market:
 - (i) With respect to a merger under § 3-106 of this title of a 90 percent or more owned subsidiary with or into its parent corporation, on the date notice is given or waived under § 3-106; or
 - (ii) With respect to any other transaction, on the record date for determining stockholders entitled to vote on the transaction objected to;
 - (2) The stock is that of the successor in a merger, unless:
 - (i) The merger alters the contract rights of the stock as expressly set forth in the charter, and the charter does not reserve the right to do so; or
 - (ii) The stock is to be changed or converted in whole or in part in the merger into something other than either stock in the successor or cash, scrip, or other rights or interests arising out of provisions for the treatment of fractional shares of stock in the successor;
 - (3) The stock is not entitled to be voted on the transaction or the stockholder did not own the shares of stock on the record date for determining stockholders entitled to vote on the transaction;
 - (4) The charter provides that the holders of the stock are not entitled to exercise the rights of an objecting stockholder under this subtitle; or
 - (5) The stock is that of an open-end investment company registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and the value placed on the stock in the transaction is its net asset value.

§ 3-203. Procedure by stockholder.

- (a) Specific duties. A stockholder of a corporation who desires to receive payment of the fair value of the stockholder's stock under this subtitle:
 - (1) Shall file with the corporation a written objection to the proposed transaction:
 - (i) With respect to a merger under § 3-106 of this title of a 90 percent or more owned subsidiary with or into its parent corporation, within 30 days after notice is given or waived under § 3-106; or
 - (ii) With respect to any other transaction, at or before the stockholders' meeting at which the transaction will be considered or, in the case of action taken under §2-505(b) of this article, within 10 days after the corporation gives the notice required by §2-505(b) of this article;
 - (2) May not vote in favor of the transaction; and
 - (3) Within 20 days after the Department accepts the articles for record, shall make a written demand on the successor for payment for the stockholder's stock, stating the number and class of shares for which the stockholder demands payment.
- (b) Failure to comply with section. A stockholder who fails to comply with this section is bound by the terms of the consolidation, merger, share exchange, transfer of assets, or charter amendment.

B-2

§ 3-204. Effect of demand on dividend and other rights.

A stockholder who demands payment for his stock under this subtitle:

- (1) Has no right to receive any dividends or distributions payable to holders of record of that stock on a record date after the close of business on the day as at which fair value is to be determined under § 3-202 of this subtitle; and
 - (2) Ceases to have any rights of a stockholder with respect to that stock, except the right to receive payment of its fair value.

§ 3-205. Withdrawal of demand.

A demand for payment may be withdrawn only with the consent of the successor.

§ 3-206. Restoration of dividend and other rights.

- (a) When rights restored. The rights of a stockholder who demands payment are restored in full, if:
 - (1) The demand for payment is withdrawn;
 - (2) A petition for an appraisal is not filed within the time required by this subtitle;
 - (3) A court determines that the stockholder is not entitled to relief; or
 - (4) The transaction objected to is abandoned or rescinded
- (b) Effect of restoration. The restoration of a stockholder's rights entitles him to receive the dividends, distributions, and other rights he would have received if he had not demanded payment for his stock. However, the restoration does not prejudice any corporate proceedings taken before the restoration.

§ 3-207. Notice and offer to stockholders.

- (a) Duty of successor
 - (1) The successor promptly shall notify each objecting stockholder in writing of the date the articles are accepted for record by the Department.
 - (2) The successor also may send a written offer to pay the objecting stockholder what it considers to be the fair value of his stock. Each offer shall be accompanied by the following information relating to the corporation which issued the stock:
 - (i) A balance sheet as of a date not more than \sin months before the date of the offer;
 - (ii) A profit and loss statement for the 12 months ending on the date of the balance sheet; and
 - (iii) Any other information the successor considers pertinent.
- (b) Manner of sending notice. The successor shall deliver the notice and offer to each objecting stockholder personally or mail them to him by certified mail, return receipt requested, bearing a postmark from the United States Postal Service, at the address he gives the successor in writing, or, if none, at his address as it appears on the records of the corporation which issued the stock.

§ 3-208. Petition for appraisal; consolidation of proceedings; joinder of objectors.

(a) Petition for appraisal. Within 50 days after the Department accepts the articles for record, the successor or an objecting stockholder who has not received payment for his stock may petition a court

B-3

of equity in the county where the principal office of the successor is located or, if it does not have a principal office in this State, where the resident agent of the successor is located, for an appraisal to determine the fair value of the stock.

- (b) Consolidation of suits; joinder of objectors.
 - (1) If more than one appraisal proceeding is instituted, the court shall direct the consolidation of all the proceedings on terms and conditions it considers proper.
 - (2) Two or more objecting stockholders may join or be joined in an appraisal proceeding.

§ 3-209. Notation on stock certificate.

(a) Submission of certificate. At any time after a petition for appraisal is filed, the court may require the objecting stockholders parties to the proceeding to submit their stock certificates to the clerk of the court for notation on them that the appraisal proceeding is pending. If a stockholder fails to comply with the order, the court may dismiss the proceeding as to him or grant other appropriate relief.

(b) Transfer of stock bearing notation. If any stock represented by a certificate which bears a notation is subsequently transferred, the new certificate issued for the stock shall bear a similar notation and the name of the original objecting stockholder. The transferee of this stock does not acquire rights of any character with respect to the stock other than the rights of the original objecting stockholder.

§ 3-210. Appraisal of fair value.

- (a) Court to appoint appraisers. If the court finds that the objecting stockholder is entitled to an appraisal of his stock, it shall appoint three disinterested appraisers to determine the fair value of the stock on terms and conditions the court considers proper. Each appraiser shall take an oath to discharge his duties honestly and faithfully.
- (b) Report of appraisers—Filing. Within 60 days after their appointment, unless the court sets a longer time, the appraisers shall determine the fair value of the stock as of the appropriate date and file a report stating the conclusion of the majority as to the fair value of the stock.
 - (c) Same—Contents. The report shall state the reasons for the conclusion and shall include a transcript of all testimony and exhibits offered.
 - (d) Same—Service; objection.
 - (1) On the same day that the report is filed, the appraisers shall mail a copy of it to each party to the proceedings.
 - (2) Within 15 days after the report is filed, any party may object to it and request a hearing.

§ 3-211. Action by court on appraisers' report.

- (a) Order of court. The court shall consider the report and, on motion of any party to the proceeding, enter an order which:
 - (1) Confirms, modifies, or rejects it; and
 - (2) If appropriate, sets the time for payment to the stockholder.

B-4

- (b) Procedure after order.
 - (1) If the appraisers' report is confirmed or modified by the order, judgment shall be entered against the successor and in favor of each objecting stockholder party to the proceeding for the appraised fair value of his stock.
 - (2) If the appraisers' report is rejected, the court may:
 - (i) Determine the fair value of the stock and enter judgment for the stockholder; or
 - (ii) Remit the proceedings to the same or other appraisers on terms and conditions it considers proper.
- (c) Judgment includes interest.
 - (1) Except as provided in paragraph (2) of this subsection, a judgment for the stockholder shall award the value of the stock and interest from the date as at which fair value is to be determined under § 3-202 of this subtitle.
 - (2) The court may not allow interest if it finds that the failure of the stockholder to accept an offer for the stock made under § 3-207 of this subtitle was arbitrary and vexatious or not in good faith. In making this finding, the court shall consider:
 - (i) The price which the successor offered for the stock;
 - (ii) The financial statements and other information furnished to the stockholder; and
 - (iii) Any other circumstances it considers relevant.
- (d) Costs of proceedings.
 - (1) The costs of the proceedings, including reasonable compensation and expenses of the appraisers, shall be set by the court and assessed against the successor. However, the court may direct the costs to be apportioned and assessed against any objecting stockholder if the court finds that the failure of the stockholder to accept an offer for the stock made under § 3-207 of this subtitle was arbitrary and vexatious or not in good faith. In making this finding, the court shall consider:
 - (i) The price which the successor offered for the stock;
 - (ii) The financial statements and other information furnished to the stockholder; and
 - (iii) Any other circumstances it considers relevant.
 - (2) Costs may not include attorney's fees or expenses. The reasonable fees and expenses of experts may be included only if:
 - (i) The successor did not make an offer for the stock under § 3-207 of this subtitle; or
 - (ii) The value of the stock determined in the proceeding materially exceeds the amount offered by the successor.
- (e) Effect of judgment. The judgment is final and conclusive on all parties and has the same force and effect as other decrees in equity. The judgment constitutes a lien on the assets of the successor with priority over any mortgage or other lien attaching on or after the effective date of the consolidation, merger, transfer, or charter amendment.

B-5

§ 3-212. Surrender of stock.

The successor is not required to pay for the stock of an objecting stockholder or to pay a judgment rendered against it in a proceeding for an appraisal unless, simultaneously with payment:

- (1) The certificates representing the stock are surrendered to it, indorsed in blank, and in proper form for transfer; or
- (2) Satisfactory evidence of the loss or destruction of the certificates and sufficient indemnity bond are furnished.

§ 3-213. Rights of successor with respect to stock.

(a) General rule. A successor which acquires the stock of an objecting stockholder is entitled to any dividends or distributions payable to holders of record of that stock on a record date after the close of business on the day as at which fair value is to be determined under § 3-202 of this subtitle.

(b) Successor in transfer of assets. After acquiring the stock of an objecting stockholder, a successor in a transfer of assets may exercise all the rights of an owner of the stock.

(c) Successor in consolidation, merger, or share exchange. Unless the articles provide otherwise, stock in the successor of a consolidation, merger, or share exchange otherwise deliverable in exchange for the stock of an objecting stockholder has the status of authorized but unissued stock of the successor. However, a proceeding for reduction of the capital of the successor is not necessary to retire the stock or to reduce the capital of the successor represented by the stock.

B-6

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 20. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

The Registrant's officers and directors are indemnified under Delaware law.

The Delaware General Corporation Law (the "DGCL") generally permits a corporation to indemnify its directors and officers, among others, against expenses, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually or reasonably incurred by them in the defense or settlement of third-party actions or action by or in right of a corporation, and for judgments in third party actions, provided there is a determination by directors who were not parties to the action, or if directed by such directors, by independent legal counsel or by majority vote of a quorum of stockholders, that the person seeking indemnification acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the interests of the corporation, and in a criminal proceeding, that the person had no reason to believe his or her conduct to be unlawful. Without court approval, however, no indemnification may be made in respect of any action by or in right of the corporation in which such person is adjudged liable. The DGCL states that the indemnification provided by statute shall not be deemed exclusive of any rights under any by-law, agreement, vote of stockholders or interested directors or otherwise. In addition, the liability of officers may not be eliminated or limited under Delaware law.

The Registrant's Charter contains a provision limiting the liability of directors and officers to the Registrant and its stockholders to the fullest extent permitted under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware. The Registrant's Charter provides that the directors will not be personally liable to the corporation or to its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director; provided, however, that such provision will not eliminate or limit the liability of a director for (1) any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the corporation and its stockholders; (2) acts or omissions not in good faith; (3) any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit; or (4) any matter in respect of which such director would be liable under Section 174 of the DGCL. The personal liability of a director for violation of the federal securities laws is not limited or otherwise affected. In addition, these provisions do not affect the ability of stockholders to obtain injunctive or other equitable relief from the courts with respect to a transaction involving gross negligence on the part of a director. No amendment of the Registrant's Charter shall limit or eliminate the right to indemnification provided with respect to acts or omissions occurring prior to such amendment or repeal. The Registrant's By-Laws contain provisions which implement the indemnification provisions of the Charter.

The Registrant has entered into indemnification agreements with each of its directors and officers. The indemnification agreements require, among other things, that the Registrant indemnify its directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by law, and advance to the directors and officers all related expenses, subject to reimbursement if it is subsequently determined that indemnification is not permitted. The Registrant also must indemnify and advance all expenses incurred by directors and officers seeking to enforce their rights under the indemnification agreements, and cover each director and officer if the Registrant obtains directors' and officers' liability insurance.

In addition, the Registrant has a directors' and officers' liability and company reimbursement policy that insures against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, subject to applicable retentions.

Item 21. Exhibits

The list of exhibits is incorporated by reference to the Index to Exhibits on page E-1.

II-1

Item 22. Undertakings.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by a registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes to respond to requests for information that is incorporated by reference into the prospectus pursuant to Item 4, 10(b), 11 or 13 of this Form, within one business day of receipt of such request, and to send the incorporated documents by first class mail or other equally prompt means. This includes information contained in documents filed subsequent to the effective date of this Registration Statement through the date of responding to the request.

The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning a transaction, and the company being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in this Registration Statement when it became effective.

II_2

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Indianapolis, State of Indiana, on May 22, 2001.

SIMON PROPERTY GROUP, INC.

By: /s/ DAVID SIMON

David Simon,

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities indicated and on May 22, 2001.

Signature Title

/s/ DAVID SIMON

Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

David Simon

* Co-Chairman of the Board of Directors

Herbert Simon	
*	Co-Chairman of the Board of Directors
Melvin Simon	
*	Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
Hans C. Mautner	
*	President, Chief Operating Officer and Director
Richard Sokolov	
*	
Birch Bayh	Director
*	
Pieter S. van den Berg	Director
*	
G. William Miller	Director
	II–3
*	
Fredrick W. Petri	Director
*	
J. Albert Smith	Director
*	
Philip J. Ward	Director
*	
M. Denise DeBartolo York	Director
/s/ STEPHEN E. STERRETT	Executive Vice President and
Stephen E. Sterrett	Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ JOHN DAHL	Senior Vice President
John Dahl *By /s/ DAVID SIMON	(Principal Accounting Officer)
David Simon, Attorney-in-Fact	
	II–4
	EXHIBIT INDEX

EXHIBIT NUMBER	DESCRIPTION
1.1	Agreement of Merger dated May 9, 2001, between Simon Property Group, Inc. and SPG Properties, Inc. (appears as Appendix A to the information statement-prospectus which is a part of this Registration Statement).
3.1*	Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Simon Property Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Form 8-K filed by Simon Property Group, Inc. and SRC Realty Consultants, Inc. on October 9, 1998).
3.2*	Restated By-Laws of Simon Property Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Form 8-K filed by Simon Property Group, Inc. and SRC Realty Consultants, Inc. on October 9, 1998).
4.1*	Certificate of the Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights of the 8 ³ /4% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, \$.0001 Par Value, of Simon Property Group, Inc.
4.2*	Certificate of the Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights of the 7.89% Series G Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock, \$.0001 Par Value, of Simon Property Group, Inc.
4.3*	Form of Stock Certificate for shares of 8 ³ /4% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, \$.0001 Par Value, of Simon Property Group, Inc.
4.4*	Form of Stock Certificate for shares of 7.89% Series G Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock, \$.0001 Par Value, of Simon Property Group, Inc.
5.1*	Opinion of Baker & Daniels regarding validity of the Simon preferred stock.
8.1*	Opinion of Baker & Daniels regarding tax matters.

12.1 Statement regarding computation of ratios. List of Subsidiaries of Simon Property Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Form 10-K filed by Simon 21.1* Property Group, Inc. and SRC Realty Consultants, Inc. on March 29, 2001). 23.1 Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP. Consent of Baker & Daniels (included in its opinions filed as Exhibits 5.1. and 8.1). 23.2* 24.1* Powers of Attorney (included on signature pages). 99.1 Form of letter of transmittal for common stock. 99.2 Form of letter of transmittal for 8³/4% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. $Form\ of\ letter\ of\ transmittal\ for\ 7.89\%\ Series\ C\ Cumulative\ Step-Up\ Premium\ Rate\ Preferred\ Stock.$ 99.3 Previously filed. E-1QuickLinks TABLE OF CONTENTS QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER **SUMMARY** RISK FACTORS PROPERTIES SPECIAL MEETING THE MERGER FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES INFORMATION ABOUT PROPERTIES AND SIMON

POLICIES OF SIMON FOLLOWING THE MERGER DESCRIPTION OF SIMON PREFERRED STOCK TO BE ISSUED IN THE MERGER DIFFERENCES BETWEEN PROPERTIES AND SIMON ORGANIZATIONAL DOCUMENTS AND MARYLAND AND DELAWARE LAW UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEGAL MATTERS

EXPERTS

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

APPENDIX A APPENDIX B

SIGNATURES

EXHIBIT INDEX

SIMON PROPERTY GROUP, INC. COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

(in thousands)

SIMON	PR0	PERTY	GROUP,	INC.
 				D. MADOU

	FOR THE THREE	MONTHS ENDED M	IARCH 31,
	2001 PRO FORMA		
Earnings: Income before extraordinary items	\$ 70,219	\$ 70,219	\$ 83,762
Add: Minority interest in income of majority owned subsidiaries	2,238	2,238	2,434
Distributed income from unconsolidated entities	6,539	6,539	9,485
Amortization of capitalized interest	389	389	299
Fixed Charges	185,799	193,133	189,687
Less: Income from unconsolidated entities	(9,075)	(9,075)	(9,602)
Interest capitalization	(3,022)	(3,022)	(3,100)
Preferred distributions of consolidated subsidiaries		(10,246)	
Earnings	\$250,175	\$250,175	
Fixed Charges: Portion of rents representative of the interest factor	1,234	1,234	1,138
Interest on indebtedness (including amortization of debt expense)	178,631	178,631	175,298
Interest capitalized	3,022	3,022	3,100
Preferred distributions of consolidated subsidiaries	2,912		10,151
Fixed Charges	\$185,799	\$193,133	\$189,687
Preferred Stock Dividends	16,519	9,185	9,221
Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	\$202,318	\$202,318	\$198,908
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	1.24	1.24	1.32

	S	SIMON DEBARTOLO GROUP, INC.					
	FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,						
	2000 PRO FORMA	2000	1999	1998	1997	1996	
Earnings: Income before extraordinary items	\$ 402,011	\$ 402,011	\$ 358,859	\$ 271,634	\$ 220,434	\$ 134,663	
Add: Minority interest in income of majority owned subsidiaries	10,725	10,725	10,719	7,335	5,270	4,300	
Distributed income from unconsolidated entities	45,948	45,948	30,169	29,903	15,619	5,538	
Amortization of capitalized interest	1,323	1,323	724	380	0	0	
Fixed Charges Less:	747,029	776,364	692,384	500,009	322,685	210,913	
Income from unconsolidated entities	(53,476)	(53,476)	(44,926)	(22,293)	(8,690)	(4,060)	
Interest capitalization	(18,638)	(18,638)	(23,759)	(13,792)	(11,932)	(5,831)	
Preferred distributions of consolidated subsidiaries	(11,267)	(40,602)	(32,252)	(7,816)	0	0	
Earnings	\$1,123,655	\$ 1,123,655	\$ 991,918	\$ 765,360	\$ 543,386	\$ 345,523	

Fixed Charges: Portion of rents representative of the interest factor	5,078	5,078	4,913	4,831	3,732	2,900
<pre>Interest on indebtedness (including amortization of debt expense)</pre>	712,046	712,046	631,460	473,570	307,021	202,182
Interest capitalized	18,638	18,638	23,759	13,792	11,932	5,831
Preferred distributions of consolidated subsidiaries	11,267	40,602	32,252	7,816	0	0
Fixed Charges	\$ 747,029	\$ 776,364	\$ 692,384	\$ 500,009	\$ 322,685	\$ 210,913
Preferred Stock Dividends	66,143	36,808	37,071	33,655	29,248	12,694
Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	\$ 813,172	\$ 813,172	\$ 729,455	\$ 533,664	\$ 351,933	\$ 223,607
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends	1.38	1.38	1.36	1.43	1.54	1.55

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

As independent public accountants, we hereby consent to the use of our reports (and to all references to our Firm) included in or made a part of this registration statement.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Indianapolis, Indiana, May 18, 2001.

Date

FORM OF LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

To accompany certificates formerly representing shares of Common Stock, par value \$.0001 per share, of

of
SPG PROPERTIES, INC.
(the "Properties Common Stock")

DESCRIPTION OF SHARES OF PROP	ERTIES COMMON STOCK ENCLOSED
Name and Address of Registered Holder(s) (If blank, please fill in, exactly as name appears on share certificate(s))	Certificate(s) Enclosed (Please list below —if additional space is necessary please use the area entitled "Additional Space" on the last page)
	Certificate Number (s) Number of Shares
	<
	Total Shares <
THE INSTRUCTIONS ACCOMPANYING T	ONTACT THE EXCHANGE AGENT AT FOR REPLACEMENT INSTRUCTIONS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL. THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL SHOULD TTER OF TRANSMITTAL IS COMPLETED.
SPECIAL PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS (See Instructions 1, 4, and 5)	SPECIAL DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS (See Instructions 1, 4, 5 and 6)
To be completed ONLY if the check for payment for the shares of Properties Common Stock enclosed is to be issued to someone other than the undersigned.	To be completed ONLY if the check for payment for the shares of Properties Common Stock enclosed is to be sent to someone other than the undersigned or to the undersigned at an addres other than that shown above.
Issue and mail the check to:	Mail the check in the name of the undersigned to:
Name(s):	Name:
(Please Print)	(Please Print) Address:
Address:	
	(Include Zip Code)
(Include Zip Code)	
	GUARANTEE specified in Instruction 1)
Signature(s) Guarantee:	
(Name of Firm Providing Sign	ature Guarantee—Please Print)
(Authorized S	ignature, Title)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to an Agreement of Merger dated as of May 9, 2001 between Simon Property Group, Inc. ("Simon") and SPG Properties, Inc. ("Properties"), the undersigned hereby surrenders to Mellon Investor Services LLC acting as exchange agent (the "Exchange Agent") the certificate(s) (each, a "Certificate") formerly representing all of the undersigned's shares of Properties Common Stock listed above in exchange for \$26.28 in cash for each share and fractional interest so surrendered (the "Merger Consideration").

The undersigned hereby represents and warrants that the undersigned was the registered holder of the Properties Common Stock on June 30, 2001 (the effective date upon which Properties merged with and into Simon), with good title to the above-described Properties Common Stock and full power and authority to sell, assign and transfer the Properties Common Stock represented by the enclosed Certificate(s), free and clear of all liens, claims and encumbrances, and not subject to any adverse claims. The undersigned will, upon request, execute any additional documents necessary or desirable to complete the surrender and exchange of such Properties Common Stock. The undersigned hereby irrevocably appoints the Exchange Agent, as agent of the undersigned, to effect the exchange. All authority conferred or agreed to be conferred in this Letter of Transmittal shall be binding upon the successors, assigns, heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives of the undersigned and shall not be affected by, and shall survive, the death or incapacity of the undersigned.

It is understood that the undersigned will not receive the Merger Consideration until the Certificate(s) representing the Properties Common Stock owned by the undersigned are received by the Exchange Agent at the address set forth on the sheet entitled "Instructions", together with such documents as the Exchange Agent may require, and until the same are processed for exchange by the Exchange Agent. It is further understood that no interest will accrue on the Merger Consideration.

Unless otherwise indicated above under Special Payment Instructions, in exchange for the enclosed Certificate(s), the undersigned requests that a check for payment of the Merger Consideration be issued to the undersigned. Similarly, unless otherwise indicated under Special Delivery Instructions, please mail such check to the undersigned at the address shown on the previous page. In the event that both the Special Payment Instructions and the Special Delivery Instructions are completed, please issue and mail such check to the person or entity so indicated at the address so indicated. Appropriate signature guarantees have been included with respect to Properties Common Stock for which Special Payment Instructions have been given.

CLONTIEDE

	(Signature(s) of Owner(s))
by endorsen	gned by registered holder(s) exactly as name(s) appear(s) on stock certificate(s) or by person(s) authorized to become registered holder(s) of certificates as evidence nent or stock powers transmitted herewith. If signed bey, trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, officer or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, the capacity of the person should be indicated the extension 4)
Date	
, 2001	
Name(s):	
	(Please Print)
Capacity (F	ull Title):
Address:	
Area Code a	

IMPORTANT TAX INFORMATION

Under Federal income tax laws, a holder who receives payment of the Merger Consideration is required by law to provide the Exchange Agent (as payer) with such holder's correct TIN on Substitute Form W-9. If such holder is an individual, the TIN is his or her social security number. If the Exchange Agent is not provided with the correct TIN, a \$50 penalty may be imposed on the holder by the Internal Revenue Service, and payment of the Merger Consideration may be subject to backup withholding.

Certain holders (including, among others, all corporations and certain foreign individuals) are exempt from these backup withholding and reporting requirements. Exempt holders should indicate their exempt status by checking the box in Part 4 of Substitute Form W-9.

If backup withholding applies, the Exchange Agent is required to withhold 31% of any payments made to the holder or other payee. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Rather, the Federal income tax liability of persons subject to backup withholding will be reduced by the amount of tax withheld. If withholding results in an overpayment of taxes, a refund may be obtained from the Internal Revenue Service.

Purpose of Substitute Form W-9

To prevent backup withholding on payments made with respect to Properties Common Stock, the holder is required to notify the Exchange Agent of such holder's correct TIN by completing the Substitute Form W-9, certifying that the TIN provided on the form is correct (or that such holder is awaiting a TIN) and certifying that (a) such holder is exempt from backup withholding, (b) such holder has not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that the holder is subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the Internal Revenue Service has notified such holder that such holder is no longer subject to backup withholding.

PAYER'S NAME: MELLON INVESTOR SERVICES LLC

SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9 Part 1—PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR TIN IN THE BOX AT RIGHT AND CERTIFY BY SIGNING AND DATING BELOW.

Social Security Number

Employer Identification Number

Part 2—Certification—Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:
(1) the number shown on this form is my correct Taxpayer Identification Number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and

PART 3—Awaiting TIN / /

Please fill in your name and address below.

ame	(2) I am not subject to backup withholding because (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding, and
ddress (number and street)	
ity, State and Zip Code epartment of the Treasury iternal Revenue Service ayer's Request for	(3) I am a U.S. person (including a U.S. resident alien).
axpayer Identification Number (TIN)	Certification instructions—You must cross out item (2) in Part 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. However, if after being notified by the IRS that you were subject to backup withholding yo received another notification from the IRS stating that you are no longer subject to backup withholding, do not cross out item (2). If you are exempt from backup withholding, check the box in Part 4 above. SIGNATURE:
	FORM MAY RESULT IN BACKUP WITHHOLDING OF 31% OF ANY PAYMENTS MADE TO YOU WITH RESPECT IFICATES SURRENDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE MERGER.
YOU MUS	T COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING CERTIFICATE IF YOU CHECKED THE BOX IN PART 3 OF SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9.
	CERTIFICATE OF AWAITING TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
certify under penalties of perjury that a taxpayer identification number has not beet ocial Security Administration Office or (b) I intend to mail or deliver an application ithheld, but will be refunded if I then provide a certified taxpayer identification nu	n issued to me, and either (a) I have mailed or delivered an application to receive a taxpayer identification number to the appropriate Internal Revenue Service Center or ni the near future. I understand that if I do not provide a taxpayer identification number by the time of payment, 31% of all reportable payments made to me will be mber within 60 days.
ignature	Date
	INSTRUCTIONS
	appleted and signed in the space provided on pages 1 and 2 of the Letter of Transmittal and in the space provided on the Substitute epresenting Properties Common Stock to the Exchange Agent at the following address:
	By Hand, Mail or Overnight Courier:
	r Consideration in exchange for his or her Certificate(s) representing Properties Common Stock until the Certificate(s) owned by address, together with such documents as the Exchange Agent may require and until the same are processed for exchange by the
urrendered herewith unless (i) such holder has completed either ligible guarantor institution such as a commercial bank, trust co	etter of Transmittal is required if the Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holder of the Properties Common Stock the box entitled "Special Payment Instructions" on the Letter of Transmittal, or, (ii) if shares are surrendered for the account of an mpany, securities broker/dealer, credit union, or savings association participating in a Medallion Program approved by the g an "Eligible Institution"). In all other cases, all signatures on the Letter of Transmittal must be guaranteed by an Eligible
* ' ' '	lo not send the Certificate(s) directly to Properties. The Certificate(s), together with a properly completed and duly executed copy ocuments required by the Letter of Transmittal, should be delivered to the Exchange Agent at the address set forth above.
	uired documents is at the election and risk of the owner. However, if Certificate(s) are sent by mail, it is recommended that receipt requested. Risk of loss and title of the Certificate(s) shall pass only upon delivery of the Certificate(s) to the
	er of any Certificate hereunder will be determined by Simon (which may delegate power in whole or in part to the Exchange reserves the right to waive any irregularities or defects in the surrender of any Certificate(s). A surrender will not be deemed to d.
3. <i>Inadequate Space</i> . If the space provided on page 1 is inaderea entitled "Additional Space" provided on the next page.	equate, the Certificate numbers and the number of shares of Properties Common Stock represented thereby should be listed in the
-	orsements. If the Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holder of the Certificate(s) surrendered hereby, the signature e Certificate(s) without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever.
If the Certificate(s) surrendered hereby is owned of record by	two or more joint owners, all such owners must sign the Letter of Transmittal.
If any surrendered Properties Common Stock is registered in ds there are different registrations of Certificates.	different names on several Certificate(s), it will be necessary to complete, sign and submit as many separate Letters of Transmittal
When the Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered own equired.	ner(s) of the Certificate(s) listed and surrendered herewith, no endorsements of the Certificate(s) or separate stock powers are
0 , 1	e registered owner of the Certificate(s) listed, such Certificate(s) must be endorsed or accompanied by appropriate stock power(s),

6. Special Delivery Instructions. Indicate on the "Special Delivery Instructions" box the name and address of the person(s) to whom the check comprising the Merger Consideration is to be sent if different from the name and address of the person(s) signing the Letter of Transmittal.

5. Stock Transfer Taxes. In the event that any transfer or other taxes become payable by reason of the payment of the Merger Consideration in any name other than that of the record holder,

If the Letter of Transmittal or any Certificate(s) or stock power(s) is signed by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, such persons must so indicate when signing, must give his or her full title in such capacity, and evidence satisfactory to the Exchange Agent of his or her authority so to

act must be submitted. The Exchange Agent will not exchange any Properties Common Stock until all instructions herein are complied with.

such transferee or assignee must pay such tax to Simon or must establish to the satisfaction of Simon that such tax has been paid or is not applicable.

guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. See Instruction 1.

- 7. Substitute Form W-9. Each surrendering stockholder is required to provide the Exchange Agent with such holder's correct Taxpayer Identification Number ("TIN") on the Substitute Form W-9, and to certify whether the stockholder is subject to backup withholding. Failure to provide such information on the form may subject the surrendering stockholder to Federal income tax withholding at a rate of 31% on payments made to such surrendering stockholder with respect to the Properties Common Stock. If such holder is an individual, the TIN is his or her social security number. A holder must cross out item (2) in Part 2 of Substitute Form W-9 if such holder is subject to backup withholding. The box in Part 3 of the form should be checked if the surrendering holder has not been issued a TIN and has applied for a TIN or intends to apply for a TIN in the near future. If the box in Part 3 is checked, the surrendering holder must also complete the Certificate of Awaiting Taxpayer Identification Number below in order to avoid backup withholding. If you have checked the box in Part 3 and do not provide the Exchange Agent with a properly certified TIN within 60 days, the Exchange Agent will withhold 31% on reportable payments made thereafter until a properly certified TIN is received by the Exchange Agent. However, such amounts will be refunded to such surrendering holder if a TIN is provided to the Exchange Agent within 60 days. See "Important Tax Information."
- 8. Lost or Destroyed Certificates. If your Certificate(s) has been lost or destroyed, please contact the Exchange Agent at order to surrender your Certificate(s) for exchange.
- 9. *Information and Additional Copies*. Information and additional copies of the Letter of Transmittal may be obtained from the Exchange Agent by writing to the mailing address or calling

ADDITIONAL SPACE

	DESCRIPTION OF SHARES	OF PROPERTIE	S COMMON STO	CK ENCLOSED				
ered Hol ctly as na icate(s))	der(s) ame			1	Certificate(s) E (Please list below i provided on page 1 w	nclosed f the space as inadequate)		
			Certifica	ate Number (s)			Number of Shares	
								<
		Total	Shares					<

QuickLinks

IMPORTANT TAX INFORMATION INSTRUCTIONS ADDITIONAL SPACE

FORM OF LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

To accompany certificates formerly representing shares of 8³/4% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, par value \$.0001 per share, of

SPG PROPERTIES, INC.

(the "Properties Series B Preferred Stock")

DESCRIPTION OF SHARES OF PROPERTIES SER	NIES B PREFERRED STOCK ENCLOSED
Name and Address of Registered Holder(s)	Certificate(s) Enclosed ease list below—if additional space is necessary please use the area entitled "Additional Space" on the last page)
	Certificate Number (s) Number of Shares
	< <u>-</u>
Total	Shares <
10	onnes .
IF ANY OR ALL OF YOUR CERTIFICATES ARE LOST OR DESTROYED, PLEASE BEFORE YOU SUBMIT THI	CONTACT THE EXCHANGE AGENT AT FOR REPLACEMENT INSTRUCTIONS S LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL.
	THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL SHOULD ETTER OF TRANSMITTAL IS COMPLETED.
SPECIAL ISSUANCE INSTRUCTIONS (See Instructions 1, 4, 6 and 7)	SPECIAL DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS (See Instructions 1, 4, 7 and 8)
To be completed ONLY if a certificate for Simon Property Group, Inc. 8 ³ /4% Series F Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock ("Simon Series F Preferred Stock") is to be issued to someone other than the undersigned.	To be completed ONLY if a certificate for Simon Series F Preferred Stock is to be sent to someone other than the undersigned or to the undersigned at an address other than that shown above.
Issue and mail Simon Series F Preferred Stock certificate(s) to:	Mail the Simon Series F Preferred Stock certificate(s) in the name of the undersigned to:
Name(s):	Name:
(Please Print)	(Please Print)
	Address:
Address:	
	(Include Zip Code)
(Include Zip Code)	// Check this box if this is how your address should be reflected on Simon Property Group, Inc.'s Shareholder Records.
	E GUARANTEE es specified in Instruction 1)
Significant (c) Guillanteer	
(Name of Firm Providing Sig	nature Guarantee—Please Print)
(Authorized	Signature, Title)
Date	
, 2001	

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to an Agreement of Merger dated as of May 9, 2001 between Simon Property Group, Inc. ("Simon") and SPG Properties, Inc. ("Properties"), the undersigned hereby surrenders to Mellon Investor Services LLC acting as exchange agent (the "Exchange Agent") the certificate(s) (each, a "Certificate") formerly representing all of the undersigned's shares of Properties Series B Preferred Stock listed above in exchange for 1 share of Simon Series F Preferred Stock for each share so surrendered (the "Merger Consideration").

The undersigned hereby represents and warrants that the undersigned was the registered holder of the Properties Series B Preferred Stock on June 30, 2001 (the effective date upon which Properties merged with and into Simon), with good title to the above-described Properties Series B Preferred Stock and full power and authority to sell, assign and transfer the Properties Series B Preferred Stock represented by the enclosed Certificate(s), free and clear of all liens, claims and encumbrances, and not subject to any adverse claims. The undersigned will, upon request, execute any additional documents necessary or desirable to complete the surrender and exchange of such Properties Series B Preferred Stock. The undersigned hereby irrevocably appoints the Exchange Agent, as agent of the undersigned, to effect the exchange. All authority conferred or agreed to be conferred in this Letter of Transmittal shall be binding upon the successors, assigns, heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives of the undersigned and shall not be affected by, and shall survive, the death or incapacity of the undersigned.

It is understood that the undersigned will not receive any certificates for the Simon Series F Preferred Stock until the Certificate(s) representing the Properties Series B Preferred Stock owned by the undersigned are received by the Exchange Agent at the address set forth on the sheet entitled "Instructions", together with such documents as the Exchange Agent may require, and until the same are processed for exchange by the Exchange Agent.

Unless otherwise indicated above under Special Issuance Instructions, in exchange for the enclosed Certificate(s), the undersigned requests that a certificate representing Simon Series F Preferred Stock be issued to the undersigned. Similarly, unless otherwise indicated under Special Delivery Instructions, please mail such certificate to the undersigned at the address shown on the previous page. In the event that both the Special Issuance Instructions and the Special Delivery Instructions are completed, please issue and mail such certificate to the person or entity so indicated at the address so indicated. Appropriate signature guarantees have been included with respect to Properties Series B Preferred Stock for which Special Issuance Instructions have been given.

	Iı	SIGN HERE mportant: Please also complete Substitute Form W-9 on the next page.	
>			
		(Signature(s) of Owner(s))	
		name(s) appear(s) on stock certificate(s) or by person(s) authorized to become re tted herewith. If signed by an attorney, trustee, executor, administrator, guardian the person should be indicated.)	-
	Date		
	, 2001		
>	Name(s):		
		(Please Print)	
>	Capacity (Full Title):		
	Address:		
	Area Code and Telephone Number:		
		IMPORTANT TAX INFORMATION	
Substitute F	orm W-9. If such holder is an individual, the TIN is his	of the Merger Consideration is required by law to provide the Exchange Agent (s or her social security number. If the Exchange Agent is not provided with the cer Consideration may be subject to backup withholding.	
	olders (including, among others, all corporations and c r exempt status by checking the box in Part 4 of Subst	ertain foreign individuals) are exempt from these backup withholding and report itute Form W-9.	ing requirements. Exempt holders should
Federal inco		to withhold 31% of any payments made to the holder or other payee. Backup wit ing will be reduced by the amount of tax withheld. If withholding results in an o	
Purpose of	Substitute Form W-9		
completing withholding	the Substitute Form W-9, certifying that the TIN provi	to Properties Series B Preferred Stock, the holder is required to notify the Excha ded on the form is correct (or that such holder is awaiting a TIN) and certifying t Revenue Service that the holder is subject to backup withholding as a result of a holder is no longer subject to backup withholding.	hat (a) such holder is exempt from backup
		PAYER'S NAME: MELLON INVESTOR SERVICES LLC	
SUBSTITUTE FORM W		Part 1—PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR TIN IN THE BOX AT RIGHT AND CERTIFY BY SIGNING AND DATING BELOW.	Social Security Number
Please fill in your name and address below.		Part 2—Certification—Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: (1) the number shown on this form is my correct Taxpayer Identification Number (or I am	OR Employer Identification Number
.,,		waiting for a number to be issued to me), and	PART 3—Awaiting TIN //
Name		(2) I am not subject to backup withholding because (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has writing the back to ask as a passess which get to back to a with a large to the IRS has writing the back to a set a passes with the large.	PART 4—Exempt TIN //

Address (number and street)

City, State and Zip Code

Department of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service Payer's Request for Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

)	I am a	U.S.	person	(includ	ling a	U.S.	resident	alien).

Certification instructions—You must cross out item (2) in Part 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. However, if after being notified by the IRS that you were subject to backup withholding you received another notification from the IRS stating that you are no longer subject to backup withholding, do not cross out item (2). If you are exempt from backup withholding, check the box in Part 4 above.

GNATURE:	DATE:

NOTE: FAILURE TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM MAY RESULT IN BACKUP WITHHOLDING OF 31% OF ANY PAYMENTS MADE TO YOU WITH RESPECT TO CERTIFICATES SURRENDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE MERGER.

YOU MUST COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING CERTIFICATE IF YOU CHECKED THE BOX IN PART 3 OF SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9.

CERTIFICATE OF AWAITING TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

I certify under penalties of perjury that a taxpayer identification number has not been issued to me, and either (a) I have mailed o Social Security Administration Office or (b) I intend to mail or deliver an application in the near future. I understand that if I do withheld, but will be refunded if I then provide a certified taxpayer identification number within 60 days.	
Signature	Date

INSTRUCTIONS

The enclosed Letter of Transmittal should be promptly (i) completed and signed in the space provided on pages 1 and 2 of the Letter of Transmittal and in the space provided on the Substitute Form W-9, and (ii) mailed or delivered with your Certificate(s) representing Properties Series B Preferred Stock to the Exchange Agent at the following address:

By Har	nd, Mail or Overnight Co	ourier

A former stockholder of Properties will not receive any certificates for the Simon Series F Preferred Stock in exchange for his or her Certificate(s) representing Properties Series B Preferred Stock until the Certificate(s) owned by such stockholder is received by the Exchange Agent at the above address, together with such documents as the Exchange Agent may require and until the same are processed for exchange by the Exchange Agent.

- 1. Guarantee of Signatures. No signature guarantee on the Letter of Transmittal is required if the Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holder of the Properties Series B Preferred Stock surrendered herewith unless (i) such holder has completed either the box entitled "Special Issuance Instructions" on the Letter of Transmittal, or, (ii) if shares are surrendered for the account of an eligible guarantor institution such as a commercial bank, trust company, securities broker/dealer, credit union, or savings association participating in a Medallion Program approved by the Securities Transfer Association, Inc. (each of the foregoing being an "Eligible Institution"). In all other cases, all signatures on the Letter of Transmittal must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. See Instruction 4.
- 2. Delivery of Letter of Transmittal and Certificates. Please do not send the Certificate(s) directly to Properties. The Certificate(s), together with a properly completed and duly executed copy of the Letter of Transmittal or a facsimile hereof and any other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal, should be delivered to the Exchange Agent at the address set forth above.

The method of delivery of Certificate(s) and any other required documents is at the election and risk of the owner. However, if Certificate(s) are sent by mail, it is recommended that they be sent by certified mail, properly insured, with return receipt requested. Risk of loss and title of the Certificate(s) shall pass only upon delivery of the Certificate(s) to the Exchange Agent.

All questions as to validity, form and eligibility of any surrender of any Certificate hereunder will be determined by Simon (which may delegate power in whole or in part to the Exchange Agent) and such determination shall be final and binding. Simon reserves the right to waive any irregularities or defects in the surrender of any Certificate(s). A surrender will not be deemed to have been made until all irregularities have been cured or waived.

- 3. *Inadequate Space*. If the space provided on page 1 is inadequate, the Certificate numbers and the number of shares of Properties Series B Preferred Stock represented thereby should be listed in the area entitled "Additional Space" provided on the next page.
- 4. Signatures on Letter of Transmittal, Stock Powers and Endorsements. If the Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holder of the Certificate(s) surrendered hereby, the signature must correspond exactly with the name written on the face of the Certificate(s) without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever.

If the Certificate(s) surrendered hereby is owned of record by two or more joint owners, all such owners must sign the Letter of Transmittal.

If any surrendered Properties Series B Preferred Stock is registered in different names on several Certificate(s), it will be necessary to complete, sign and submit as many separate Letters of Transmittal as there are different registrations of Certificates.

When the Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered owner(s) of the Certificate(s) listed and surrendered herewith, no endorsements of the Certificate(s) or separate stock powers are required.

If the Letter of Transmittal is signed by a person other than the registered owner of the Certificate(s) listed, such Certificate(s) must be endorsed or accompanied by appropriate stock power(s), in either case signed by the registered owner or owners or a person with full authority to sign on behalf of the registered owner. Signatures on such Certificate(s) or stock power(s) must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. See Instruction 1.

If the Letter of Transmittal or any Certificate(s) or stock power(s) is signed by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, such persons must so indicate when signing, must give his or her full title in such capacity, and evidence satisfactory to the Exchange Agent of his or her authority so to act must be submitted. The Exchange Agent will not exchange any Properties Series B Preferred Stock until all instructions herein are complied with.

- 5. New Certificates in Same Name. If all certificates representing Simon Series F Preferred Stock are to be registered in exactly the same name that appears on the Certificate(s) being submitted with the Letter of Transmittal, the stockholder will not be required to endorse the Certificate(s) submitted herewith or to make any payment for transfer taxes.
- 6. New Certificates in Different Name. If any certificate representing Simon Series F Preferred Stock is to be registered in other than exactly the name that appears on the Certificate(s) representing the Properties Series B Preferred Stock being submitted with the Letter of Transmittal, the Certificate(s) being submitted herewith must be endorsed, or accompanied by an appropriate signed stock power, and the signatures appearing on such endorsement(s) or stock power(s) and on the Letter of Transmittal must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. In such case the "Special Issuance Instructions" box on the Letter of Transmittal must be guaranteed as herein specified.
- 7. Stock Transfer Taxes. In the event that any transfer or other taxes become payable by reason of the payment of the Merger Consideration in any name other than that of the record holder, such transferee or assignee must pay such tax to Simon or must establish to the satisfaction of Simon that such tax has been paid or is not applicable.
- 8. Special Delivery Instructions. Indicate on the "Special Delivery Instructions" box the name and address of the person(s) to whom the certificate comprising the Merger Consideration is to be sent if different from the name and address of the person(s) signing the Letter of Transmittal. Filling in the box will NOT change your address for dividends and other mailings unless you check the appropriate box.

9. Substitute Form W-9. Each surrendering stockholder is required to provide the Exchange Agent with such holder's correct Taxpayer Identification Number ("TIN") on the Substitute Form W-9.
9, and to certify whether the stockholder is subject to backup withholding. Failure to provide such information on the form may subject the surrendering stockholder to Federal income tax
withholding at a rate of 31% on payments made to such surrendering stockholder with respect to the Properties Series B Preferred Stock. If such holder is an individual, the TIN is his or her social
security number. A holder must cross out item (2) in Part 2 of Substitute Form W-9 if such holder is subject to backup withholding. The box in Part 3 of the form should be checked if the
surrendering holder has not been issued a TIN and has applied for a TIN or intends to apply for a TIN in the near future. If the box in Part 3 is checked, the surrendering holder must also complete
the Certificate of Awaiting Taxpayer Identification Number below in order to avoid backup withholding. If you have checked the box in Part 3 and do not provide the Exchange Agent with a
properly certified TIN within 60 days, the Exchange Agent will withhold 31% on reportable payments made thereafter until a properly certified TIN is received by the Exchange Agent. During the
60-day period the Exchange Agent will withhold 31% on any reportable dividend payments made prior to the time a properly certified TIN is provided to the Exchange Agent.

However, such amounts will be refunded to such surrendering holder if a TIN is provided to the Exchange Agent within 60 days. See "Important Tax Information."

- 10. Lost or Destroyed Certificates. If your Certificate(s) has been lost or destroyed, please contact the Exchange Agent at order to surrender your Certificate(s) for exchange.
- 11. Dividends on Simon Series F Preferred Stock. Unless and until the Certificates representing Properties Series B Preferred Stock have been exchanged for shares of Simon Series F Preferred Stock, such Certificates shall evidence ownership of the shares of Simon Series F Preferred Stock into which the shares of Properties Series B Preferred Stock have been converted for all purposes, including the right to receive dividends thereon.
- 12. *Information and Additional Copies*. Information and additional copies of the Letter of Transmittal may be obtained from the Exchange Agent by writing to the mailing address or calling

ADDITIONAL SPACE

			_
DESCRIPTION OF SHARES OF PR	OPERTIES SERIES B PREFERRED STOCK ENCLOSED		_
Name and Address of Registered Holder(s) (If blank, please fill in, exactly as name appears on share certificate(s))	Certificate(s) Enclosed (Please list below if the space provided on page 1 was inadequate)		
	Certificate Number (s)	Number of Shares	
			<-
			_
	Total Shares		
			_

QuickLinks

IMPORTANT TAX INFORMATION INSTRUCTIONS ADDITIONAL SPACE

Date

FORM OF LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

To accompany certificates formerly representing shares of 7.89% Series C Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock, par value \$.0001 per share,

of SPG PROPERTIES, INC.

(the "Properties Seri	es C Preferred Stock")
DESCRIPTION OF SHARES OF PROPERTIE	S SERIES C PREFERRED STOCK ENCLOSED
Name and Address of Registered Holder(s) (If blank, please fill in, exactly as name appears on share certificate(s))	Certificate(s) Enclosed (Please list below—if additional space is necessary please use the area entitled Additional Space on the last page)
	Certificate Number (s) Number of Shares
	<
	Total Shares <
	THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL SHOULD TTER OF TRANSMITTAL IS COMPLETED.
SPECIAL ISSUANCE INSTRUCTIONS (See Instructions 1, 4, 6 and 7)	SPECIAL DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS (See Instructions 1, 4, 7 and 8)
To be completed ONLY if a certificate for Simon Property Group, Inc. 7.89% Series G Cumulative Step-Up Premium Rate Preferred Stock ("Simon Series G Preferred Stock") is to be issued to someone other than the undersigned.	To be completed ONLY if a certificate for Simon Series G Preferred Stock is to be sent to someone other than the undersigned or to the undersigned at an address other than that shown above.
Issue and mail Simon Series G Preferred Stock certificate(s) to:	Mail the Simon Series G Preferred Stock certificate(s) in the name of the undersigned to:
Name(s):	Name:
(Please Print)	(Please Print)
	Address:
Address:	
	(Include Zip Code)
(Include Zip Code)	$// Check\ this\ box\ if\ this\ is\ how\ your\ address\ should\ be\ reflected\ on\ Simon\ Property\ Group,\ Inc.'s\ Shareholder\ Records.$
	GUARANTEE s specified in Instruction 1)
Signature(s) Guarantee:	
(Name of Firm Providing Sign	nature Guarantee—Please Print)
(Authorized S	Signature, Title)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to an Agreement of Merger dated as of May 9, 2001 between Simon Property Group, Inc. ("Simon") and SPG Properties, Inc. ("Properties"), the undersigned hereby surrenders to Mellon Investor Services LLC acting as exchange agent (the "Exchange Agent") the certificate(s) (each, a "Certificate") formerly representing all of the undersigned's shares of Properties Series C Preferred Stock listed above in exchange for 1 share of Simon Series G Preferred Stock for each share so surrendered (the "Merger Consideration").

The undersigned hereby represents and warrants that the undersigned was the registered holder of the Properties Series C Preferred Stock on June 30, 2001 (the effective date upon which Properties merged with and into Simon), with good title to the above-described Properties Series C Preferred Stock and full power and authority to sell, assign and transfer the Properties Series C Preferred Stock represented by the enclosed Certificate(s), free and clear of all liens, claims and encumbrances, and not subject to any adverse claims. The undersigned will, upon request, execute any additional documents necessary or desirable to complete the surrender and exchange of such Properties Series C Preferred Stock. The undersigned hereby irrevocably appoints the Exchange Agent, as agent of the undersigned, to effect the exchange. All authority conferred or agreed to be conferred in this Letter of Transmittal shall be binding upon the successors, assigns, heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives of the undersigned and shall not be affected by, and shall survive, the death or incapacity of the undersigned.

It is understood that the undersigned will not receive any certificates for the Simon Series G Preferred Stock until the Certificate(s) representing the Properties Series C Preferred Stock owned by the undersigned are received by the Exchange Agent at the address set forth on the sheet entitled "Instructions", together with such documents as the Exchange Agent may require, and until the same are processed for exchange by the Exchange Agent.

Unless otherwise indicated above under Special Issuance Instructions, in exchange for the enclosed Certificate(s), the undersigned requests that a certificate representing Simon Series G Preferred Stock be issued to the undersigned. Similarly, unless otherwise indicated under Special Delivery Instructions, please mail such certificate to the undersigned at the address shown on the previous page. In the event that both the Special Issuance Instructions and the Special Delivery Instructions are completed, please issue and mail such certificate to the person or entity so indicated at the address so indicated. Appropriate signature guarantees have been included with respect to Properties Series C. Preferred Stock for which Special Issuance Instructions have been given

at the ac	ddress so indicated. Appropriate signature guar	antees have been included with respect to Properties Series C Preferred Stock for which Specia	al Issuance Instructions have been given.
		SIGN HERE	
		Important: Please also complete Substitute Form W-9 on the next page.	
>			
		(Signature(s) of Owner(s))	
	by endorsement or stock powers transmitted	actly as name(s) appear(s) on stock certificate(s) or by person(s) authorized to become registered dherewith. If signed by an attorney, trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, officer or other person should be indicated.) (See Instruction 4)	
	Date		
	, 2001		
>	Name(s):		
		(Please Print)	
>	Capacity (Full Title):		
	Address:		
	Area Code and Telephone Number:		
		IMPORTANT TAX INFORMATION	
Substitu	ite Form W-9. If such holder is an individual, th	es payment of the Merger Consideration is required by law to provide the Exchange Agent (as ne TIN is his or her social security number. If the Exchange Agent is not provided with the con of the Merger Consideration may be subject to backup withholding.	
	nin holders (including, among others, all corpora e their exempt status by checking the box in Par	ations and certain foreign individuals) are exempt from these backup withholding and reporting t 4 of Substitute Form W-9.	g requirements. Exempt holders should
Federal		is required to withhold 31% of any payments made to the holder or other payee. Backup withh up withholding will be reduced by the amount of tax withheld. If withholding results in an over	
Purpos	e of Substitute Form W-9		
complet	ting the Substitute Form W-9, certifying that the ding, (b) such holder has not been notified by the	with respect to Properties Series C Preferred Stock, the holder is required to notify the Exchange TIN provided on the form is correct (or that such holder is awaiting a TIN) and certifying the he Internal Revenue Service that the holder is subject to backup withholding as a result of a faithat such holder is no longer subject to backup withholding.	at (a) such holder is exempt from backup
		PAYER'S NAME: MELLON INVESTOR SERVICES LLC	
	TTUTE	Part 1—PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR TIN IN THE BOX AT RIGHT AND CERTIFY BY SIGNING AND DATING BELOW.	
FORM W-9			Social Security Number OR
Please fill	l in your name and address below.	Part 2—Certification—Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: (1) the number shown on this form is my correct Taxpayer Identification Number (or I am	Employer Identification Number
		waiting for a number to be issued to me), and	

PART 3—Awaiting TIN / /

lame	(2) I am not subject to backup withholding because (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding, and			
address (number and street)				
City, State and Zip Code lepartment of the Treasury nternal Revenue Service layer's Request for axpayer Identification Number (TIN)	(3) I am a U.S. person (including a U.S. resident alien). Certification instructions—You must cross out item (2) in Part 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. However, if after being notified by the IRS that you were subject to backup withholding you received another notification from the IRS stating that you are no longer subject to backup withholding, do not cross out item (2). If you are exempt from backup withholding, check the box in Part 4 above.			
	SIGNATURE: DATE:			
NOTE: FAILURE TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM MAY RESULT IN BACKUP WITHHOLDING OF 31% OF ANY PAYMENTS MADE TO YOU WITH RESPECT TO CERTIFICATES SURRENDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE MERGER. YOU MUST COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING CERTIFICATE IF YOU CHECKED THE BOX IN PART 3 OF SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9. CERTIFICATE OF AWAITING TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER certify under penalties of perjury that a taxpayer identification number has not been issued to me, and either (a) I have mailed or delivered an application to receive a taxpayer identification number to the appropriate Internal Revenue Service Center or ocial Security Administration Office or (b) I intend to mail or deliver an application in the near future. I understand that if I do not provide a taxpayer identification number by the time of payment, 31% of all reportable payments made to me will be rithheld, but will be refunded if I then provide a certified taxpayer identification number within 60 days.				
ignature	Date			
INSTRUCTIONS The enclosed Letter of Transmittal should be promptly (i) completed and signed in the space provided on pages 1 and 2 of the Letter of Transmittal and in the space provided on the Substitute Form W-9, and (ii) mailed or delivered with your Certificate(s) representing Properties Series C Preferred Stock to the Exchange Agent at the following address: **By Hand, Mail or Overnight Courier:**				
A former stockholder of Properties will not receive any certification	ates for the Simon Series G Preferred Stock in exchange for his or her Certificate(s) representing Properties Series C Preferred			

A former stockholder of Properties will not receive any certificates for the Simon Series G Preferred Stock in exchange for his or her Certificate(s) representing Properties Series C Preferred Stock until the Certificate(s) owned by such stockholder is received by the Exchange Agent at the above address, together with such documents as the Exchange Agent may require and until the same are processed for exchange by the Exchange Agent.

- 1. Guarantee of Signatures. No signature guarantee on the Letter of Transmittal is required if the Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holder of the Properties Series C Preferred Stock surrendered herewith unless (i) such holder has completed either the box entitled "Special Issuance Instructions" on the Letter of Transmittal, or, (ii) if shares are surrendered for the account of an eligible guarantor institution such as a commercial bank, trust company, securities broker/dealer, credit union, or savings association participating in a Medallion Program approved by the Securities Transfer Association, Inc. (each of the foregoing being an "Eligible Institution"). In all other cases, all signatures on the Letter of Transmittal must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. See Instruction 4
- 2. Delivery of Letter of Transmittal and Certificates. Please do not send the Certificate(s) directly to Properties. The Certificate(s), together with a properly completed and duly executed copy of the Letter of Transmittal or a facsimile hereof and any other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal, should be delivered to the Exchange Agent at the address set forth above.

The method of delivery of Certificate(s) and any other required documents is at the election and risk of the owner. However, if Certificate(s) are sent by mail, it is recommended that they be sent by certified mail, properly insured, with return receipt requested. Risk of loss and title of the Certificate(s) shall pass only upon delivery of the Certificate(s) to the Exchange Agent.

All questions as to validity, form and eligibility of any surrender of any Certificate hereunder will be determined by Simon (which may delegate power in whole or in part to the Exchange Agent) and such determination shall be final and binding. Simon reserves the right to waive any irregularities or defects in the surrender of any Certificate(s). A surrender will not be deemed to have been made until all irregularities have been cured or waived.

- 3. *Inadequate Space*. If the space provided on page 1 is inadequate, the Certificate numbers and the number of shares of Properties Series C Preferred Stock represented thereby should be listed in the area entitled "Additional Space" provided on the next page.
- 4. Signatures on Letter of Transmittal, Stock Powers and Endorsements. If the Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holder of the Certificate(s) surrendered hereby, the signature must correspond exactly with the name written on the face of the Certificate(s) without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever.

If the Certificate(s) surrendered hereby is owned of record by two or more joint owners, all such owners must sign the Letter of Transmittal.

If any surrendered Properties Series C Preferred Stock is registered in different names on several Certificate(s), it will be necessary to complete, sign and submit as many separate Letters of Transmittal as there are different registrations of Certificates.

When the Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered owner(s) of the Certificate(s) listed and surrendered herewith, no endorsements of the Certificate(s) or separate stock powers are required.

If the Letter of Transmittal is signed by a person other than the registered owner of the Certificate(s) listed, such Certificate(s) must be endorsed or accompanied by appropriate stock power(s), in either case signed by the registered owner or owners or a person with full authority to sign on behalf of the registered owner. Signatures on such Certificate(s) or stock power(s) must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. See Instruction 1.

If the Letter of Transmittal or any Certificate(s) or stock power(s) is signed by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, such persons must so indicate when signing, must give his or her full title in such capacity, and evidence satisfactory to the Exchange Agent of his or her authority so to act must be submitted. The Exchange Agent will not exchange any Properties Series C Preferred Stock until all instructions herein are complied with.

- 5. *New Certificates in Same Name*. If all certificates representing Simon Series G Preferred Stock are to be registered in exactly the same name that appears on the Certificate(s) being submitted with the Letter of Transmittal, the stockholder will not be required to endorse the Certificate(s) submitted herewith or to make any payment for transfer taxes.
- 6. New Certificates in Different Name. If any certificate representing Simon Series G Preferred Stock is to be registered in other than exactly the name that appears on the Certificate(s) representing the Properties Series C Preferred Stock being submitted with the Letter of Transmittal, the Certificate(s) being submitted herewith must be endorsed, or accompanied by an appropriate signed stock power, and the signatures appearing on such endorsement(s) or stock power(s) and on the Letter of Transmittal must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. In such case the "Special Issuance Instructions" box on the Letter of Transmittal must be guaranteed as herein specified.

- 7. Stock Transfer Taxes. In the event that any transfer or other taxes become payable by reason of the payment of the Merger Consideration in any name other than that of the record holder, such transferee or assignee must pay such tax to Simon or must establish to the satisfaction of Simon that such tax has been paid or is not applicable.
- 8. Special Delivery Instructions. Indicate on the "Special Delivery Instructions" box the name and address of the person(s) to whom the certificate comprising the Merger Consideration is to be sent if different from the name and address of the person(s) signing the Letter of Transmittal. Filling in the box will NOT change your address for dividends and other mailings unless you check the appropriate box.
- 9. Substitute Form W-9. Each surrendering stockholder is required to provide the Exchange Agent with such holder's correct Taxpayer Identification Number ("TIN") on the Substitute Form W-9, and to certify whether the stockholder is subject to backup withholding. Failure to provide such information on the form may subject the surrendering stockholder to Federal income tax withholding at a rate of 31% on payments made to such surrendering stockholder with respect to the Properties Series C Preferred Stock. If such holder is an individual, the TIN is his or her social security number. A holder must cross out item (2) in Part 2 of Substitute Form W-9 if such holder is subject to backup withholding. The box in Part 3 of the form should be checked if the surrendering holder has not been issued a TIN and has applied for a TIN or intends to apply for a TIN in the near future. If the box in Part 3 is checked, the surrendering holder must also complete the Certificate of Awaiting Taxpayer Identification Number below in order to avoid backup withholding. If you have checked the box in Part 3 and do not provide the Exchange Agent with a properly certified TIN within 60 days, the Exchange Agent will withhold 31% on reportable payments made thereafter until a properly certified TIN is provided to the Exchange Agent. During the 60-day period the Exchange Agent will withhold 31% on any reportable dividend payments made prior to the time a properly certified TIN is provided to the Exchange Agent.

However, such amounts will be refunded to such surrendering holder if a TIN is provided to the Exchange Agent within 60 days. See "Important Tax Information."

- 10. Lost or Destroyed Certificates. If your Certificate(s) has been lost or destroyed, please contact the Exchange Agent at order to surrender your Certificate(s) for exchange.
- 11. Dividends on Simon Series G Preferred Stock. Unless and until the Certificates representing Properties Series C Preferred Stock have been exchanged for shares of Simon Series G Preferred Stock, such Certificates shall evidence ownership of the shares of Simon Series G Preferred Stock into which the shares of Properties Series C Preferred Stock have been converted for all purposes, including the right to receive dividends thereon.
- 12. *Information and Additional Copies*. Information and additional copies of the Letter of Transmittal may be obtained from the Exchange Agent by writing to the mailing address or calling

QuickLinks

IMPORTANT TAX INFORMATION INSTRUCTIONS ADDITIONAL SPACE